Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad
(Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M))
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ Report and Financial Statements
31 December 2021



Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad 1
Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2021

The Directors have pleasure in submitting theiroreand the audited financial statements of Indgaistr
and Commercial Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad B{CMalaysia” or “the Bank”) for the financial year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Bank is principally engaged in the provisiorbahking and other related financial services.

RESULTS

RM’000
Profit before taxation 66,627
Tax expense (20,748)
Profit for the year 45,879

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from researed provisions during the financial year undeieng
except as disclosed in the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid during the financial year &mel Directors do not recommend any dividend to be
paid for the financial year.

DIRECTORS OF THE BANK
Directors who held office during the financial yesutil the date of this report are:-

Mr Chang Zhenwang

Mr Xie Shaoxiong (appointed on 19 January 2022)
Mr Wang Qiang (resigned on 19 January 2022)
Mr Chin Chee Kong

Mr Ng Lip Yong

Ms Sum Leng Kuang

In accordance with Clause 79 of the Bank’s Corstity Mr Ng Lip Yong retires at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offieirmself for re-election.

In accordance with Clause 85 of the Bank’'s Cortstitil Mr Xie Shaoxiong retires at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offieirmself for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST

None of the Directors holding office at 31 DecemB6P1 has any interest in the ordinary shares and
options over shares of the Bank and of its relatggorations during the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financial year, nee@or of the Bank has received nor become entitied
receive any benefit (other than a benefit incluthetthe aggregate amount of remuneration receivetlier
and receivable by Directors as shown in the firgratatements or the fixed salary of a full timepéoyee

of the Bank as shown in Note 30(c) to the finanstatements) by reason of a contract made by th& Ba

with the Director or with a firm of which the Direr is a member, or with a company in which the
Director has a substantial financial interest.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

There were no changes in the issued and paid-ufaktapthe Bank during the financial year. Thereres
no debentures issued during the financial year.

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES

No options were granted to any person to take igsuad shares of the Bank during the financial.year

BANK RATINGS

The Bank has not been rated by any external agencie

HOLDING CORPORATION

The Directors regard Industrial and Commercial BahlChina Limited (“Parent Bank”), a corporation
incorporated in China, as the holding corporatibthe Bank.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE COSTS

During the financial year, the Bank has put in placDirectors and Officers Insurance scheme with a

maximum sum insured and premium paid of RM10.0dioniland RM29.74 thousand respectively for
Directors and Officers of the Bank.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The Bank recorded profit before tax of RM66.63 imiill for the financial year ended 31 December 2021,
an increase of RM14.29 million or 27.3% as compandith the previous financial year. Net interest
income which contributed 69.0% to the Bank’s totat operating income has decreased by RM22.10
million or 21.5% when compared with the financiglay ended 31 December 2020 as a result of lower
average balance of interest-bearing assets and loteeest margin consequential on a gradual déemuct

of the Overnight Policy Rate (*OPR”) from 3.00% ais1 January 2020 to 1.75% as at 7 July 2020.
However, net non-interest income which constitlB&d% of the Bank’s total operating income, grew by
RM5.74 million or 18.8% to RM36.32 million. The mease was mainly contributed by RM3.11 million
higher net fee income, RM1.56 million higher netdstment income and RM1.34 million higher net
trading income as compared with the previous firdnear.

The Bank’s other operating expenses has increas&i9.48 million or 0.7% to RM71.25 million due to
higher personnel costs of RM2.73 million, mitigateg lower establishment costs of RM1.51 million,
lower administrative expenses of RM0.54 million aledver promotion and marketing expenses of
RMO0.20 million. During the year, a write-back of pairment on loans, advances and financing of
RM20.06 million was recorded as a result of negatvan growth in 2021. The Bank incurred a tax
expense of RM20.75 million, RM9.00 million highéan the previous financial year.

As at 31 December 2021, the Bank’s total assetsuated to RM4.11 billion, increasing by RM18.56
million or 0.5% when compared with 31 December 20@te increase was mainly due to greater financial
investments made on the back of negative loan ¢roWwhe Bank’s total financial investments grew by
RM149.85 million or 19.55% to RM916.41 million asnepared with the RM766.56 million recorded as at
31 December 2020. However, gross loans, advanakfireamcing have reduced by RM151.25 million or
6.2% as there were greater repayments from borsogieing the year.

The Bank’s total liabilities decreased by RM16.4@iom or 0.6% and stood at RM2.86 billion as at 31
December 2021. The lower balance was attributegdaction of deposits from customers by RM52.52
million or 2.7% when compared with the previousafigial year end. However, deposits and placements
of banks and other financial institutions increalsgdkM48.44 million or 5.8% to RM888.49 million.

Although the current operating environment occasibby the COVID-19 pandemic remains challenging,
the Bank shall continue to maintain its capital dimglidity position in accordance with regulatory
requirements.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2022

Taking cognizance of the then prevailing developnuérglobal economy and pandemic situation around
the world, the World Bank and International Mongt&und had in January 2022 forecasted the global
Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) would expand 4.1% 4% respectively in 2022. The balance of risks
to the global growth outlook would remain tilted ttte downside. This would be attributed mainly to
uncertainty surrounding the emergence of Omicromew virus variants of concern, the risk of more
prolonged global supply chain disruptions and pidérnisk of heightened financial market volatiligynid
adjustments in monetary policy in major economies.

Going into 2022, BNM opined that the nation woudgdume growth momentum, primarily benefiting from
the resumption of economic activities, further ioy@ment in the labour market, continued policy supp
and expansion in external demand. However, BNM esg@d its concern on the progress and efficacy of
vaccinations, compliance with Standard Operatingc@utures (SOPs) as well as the ability to effelstive
contain outbreaks from any new virus variants afoson will be key to the expected recovery

On another note, while the banking system in Madaysmained sound as evidenced by its healthy asset
quality and strong capitalisation, the downsid&sisecome imminent amid the chain impacts of COVID-
19 outbreak to the domestic economy and abroad;hwiliould ultimately add on the credit costs of the
banks. As economic activities normalise, the iidlatis expected to move upwards despite continued
spare capacity in the economy. However, the ouflediich continues to be subject to global commodity
price developments and some risk from prolongeglguelated disruptions, is further dimmed by the
Russia-Ukraine War that broke out on 24 Februar®22herefore, banks’ earnings are expected to
remain clouded by the uncertain operating landscapgé22.

The Bank will remain prudent and focused on itgglberm strategic objectives with the aim of playimg
greater role in providing banking service solutidhat suit clients’ evolving needs and promotingssr
border trade and investment activities by capitadion the ICBC Group’s established business nétwor
and service channels globally. Notwithstanding ¢hallenging operating environment brought about by
the COVID-19 outbreak and the Russia-Ukraine Whee,Bank will continue to uphold its commitment to
grow the business and manage the financial positi@ansustainable manner.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT |

ICBC Malaysia strongly believes that good govermaiscvital to the long-term success and sustaiabil

of the Bank’s business with the ultimate objectdfesafeguarding the interests of all stakeholdexd a
enhancing shareholder value. To this end, the Bo&fdirectors (“the Board”) is committed to provide
effective leadership in ensuring that responsiblé sustainable business practices as well as gresti
level of corporate integrity are promoted throughibie Bank. Despite heightened challenges arisiom f

the COVID-19 pandemic, the Board collectively affy its commitment in upholding the Bank’s strong
corporate governance, internal processes, guidelne systems and the implementation of appropriate
risk management and internal controls. The Bankicoes to abide by the principles and best pragtife
corporate governance, especially those prescribddriby Bank Negara Malaysia’'s Policy Document on
Corporate Governance (“BNM CG Policy”) and Malayst@ode on Corporate Governance, as the basis of
its governance model.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(&) Board Composition

The Bank embraces the positive and value-addedcintpat diversity in the Board brings to the

Bank. In this regard, the Board considers diverfiityn a number of different aspects, including

gender, cultural and educational background, psidesl experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service.

Presently, the Board of the Bank is representedfilly (5) Members, comprising the Non-
Independent Non-Executive Chairman, the Managingeddor and three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors (“INEDs”), in which one of tHEEDs is female. The Board is constituted of
individuals of high calibre with relevant experienand skillset that allow a breadth of perspective;
this is viewed as optimal given the complexityesind scope of the business operations of the Bank.

A brief profile of each member of the Board is grted below:-

0] Mr Chang Zhenwang
Chairman/Non-I ndependent Non-Executive Director
(appointed to the Board on 28 October 2016)
60 years old/Chinese

Academic/Professional Qualification
* Master of Business Administration, Fudan Univgrsand University of Hong Kong
(International), China

Skills and Experience

Mr Chang Zhenwang carries with him more than 30ry@éh banking experience. He started
his career with Industrial and Commercial Bank éir@ Limited (“ICBC”) in 1986 and held
various positions since then ranging from Officexd &Deputy Director of Administration
Department, ICBC Anhui Branch (December 1986 - Maver 1997), Deputy President of
ICBC Bengbu Branch (December 1997 - March 1998ubePresident (Officer-in-Charge)
of ICBC Suxian Branch (April 1998 - April 1999) asdbsequently as President of the branch
before taking up the position as Chief Executivdid®f of Banking Office in ICBC Anhui
Branch from July 1999 until February 2002. Mr Chafigenwang was appointed Deputy
President of ICBC Anhui Branch in March 2002 befassuming the position as President of
the branch in April 2011 until his retirement in idh 2015.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(&) Board Composition(continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Mr Chang Zhenwang (continued)

Other Directorships
* |ICBC (Almaty) Joint Stock Company (Chairman)
* |CBC International Holdings Limited

Mr Xie Shaoxiong
Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer (appointed to the Board on 19 January 2022)
55 years old/Chinese

Academic/Professional Qualification
* Master Degree in Business Administration (EMBBuynan University, China
* Bachelor Degree in Economics (major in InternaéibFinance), Xiamen University, China

Skills and Experience

Mr Xie Shaoxiong has more than 30 years of expeéédn financial services industry having
held various senior positions within ICBC GroupioPrto his current role, Mr Xie was the
General Manager of ICBC Turkey Bank Anonim SirK&f€CBC Turkey”) and also served as a
Member of its Board. He was also the Board ChairmnbnCBC Turkey Yatirirm Menkul
Degerler AS., a subsidiary of ICBC Turkey.

Other Directorships
Nil

Mr Chin Chee Kong

I ndependent Non-Executive Director (appointed to the Board on 10 August 2017)
Chairman of Audit Committee

Member of Board Risk Management Committee

Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

65 years old/Malaysian

Academic/Professional Qualification
* Member of the Malaysian Institute of Accounta(dA)
* Member of the Malaysian Institute of Certifiedi#¥ia Accountants (MICPA)

Skills and Experience

Mr Chin Chee Kong is a Chartered Accountant ancedif@@d Public Accountant. He has 35
years of experience in providing audit, taxatiord arporate advisory services (including
corporate finance and corporate restructuring) lients in a wide range of industries. He
started his career as an audit junior with Peattkr Mitchell & Co (now known as KPMG
PLT) in 1979 and had held various positions befoggng promoted as a Partner of KPMG
Malaysia in 1990. He was later appointed as Paitn@harge of KPMG East Malaysia in
2007 and a member of the Executive Council of KPM@&aysia in 2011 until his retirement
from the Firm on 1 January 2014.

Other Directorships

* Naim Holdings Berhad

* Perdana Petroleum Berhad

* Kebajikan Dayang Fatimah Berhad
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(&) Board Composition(continued)

(iv)

v)

Mr Ng Lip Yong

I ndependent Non-Executive Director (appointed to the Board on 7 February 2019)
Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Board Risk Management Committee

72 years old/Malaysian

Academic/Professional Qualification

* Master of Science in Microwave and Communicati&mgjineering, University of Leeds, UK
* Bachelor of Engineering (Hons) in Electronic Emggring, University of Sheffield, UK

* Life Member, Institute of Electrical and ElectiorEngineers (IEEE), USA

Skills and Experience

Mr Ng Lip Yong has broad experiences through varipusitions/advisory roles held in the
government agencies and corporate sector. He hafibug technical and management
positions in several established companies, whicluded as Engineer of Standard Telephone
& Cables Ltd, England and Telecommunications Authiaf Singapore, Resident Manager of
GTE International Incorporated, USA (Malaysia Repraative Office), Managing Director of
Hai-O Marketing Sdn Bhd and Hai-O Energy Sdn Bhd 8usiness Advisor of Hiap Teck
Venture Berhad.

Mr Ng Lip Yong has previously served the Malays@overnment as the Deputy Minister of
Ministry of International Trade & Industry Malays{#ITl), Chairman of Malaysian Logistic

Council, Parliamentary Secretary of Ministry of miion Industries & Commodities

Malaysia and Member of Parliament for Batu Constitty, Kuala Lumpur. He is currently the
Honourary Advisor of Malaysia-China Chamber of Coence.

Other Directorships
Nil

Ms Sum Leng Kuang

I ndependent Non-Executive Director (appointed to the Board on 15 April 2019)
Chairman of Board Risk Management Committee

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

68 years old/Malaysian

Academic/Professional Qualification
* Bachelor of Commerce in Finance, University oih@abury, New Zealand
* Certified Financial Planner

Skills and Experience

Ms Sum Leng Kuang has over 35 years of experiemdand investment and management,
particularly in credit and market risk managemestie worked loyally with Great Eastern
Group for 31 years since 1982, heading the invadtgam in managing more than RM40.0
billion fixed income funds before she retired in130from Great Eastern Life Assurance
(Malaysia) Berhad. She was then appointed as tlief Givestment Officer cum Acting Chief
Executive Officer for Hong Leong Asset ManagemegetHad to drive and oversee the fund
management business from 2013 to 2014. Ms Sum Keagg was subsequently appointed as
the Investment Advisor for Credit Guarantee CorponaMalaysia Berhad since 2015.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(a) Board Composition (continued)

(b)

(©)

(v) Ms Sum Leng Kuang(continued)

Other Directorships
Nil

As at the date of this report, none of the Direstove any shareholding in the Bank nor any cdnflic
of interest or personal interest in any businesmgement involving the Bank.

Tenure and Independence

The Board recognises the importance of havingangtelement of independence on the Board so as
to provide effective check and balance in the fiamitig of the Board to safeguard the interestief t
Bank and all stakeholders. The current IndepenBaneictors of the Bank account for 60% of the
Board, which is in compliance with the requiremehhaving a majority of Independent Directors on
the Board at all times as set out in BNM CG Paolicy.

The Board through the Nomination and Remuneratiom@ittee (“NRC”) assesses the Independent
Directors’ independence annually. In the annuatssaent of the Independent Directors of the Bank
for financial year 2021 (“FY2021"), the Board waisfied that each of the Independent Directors of
the Bank continues to be independent and free &moynbusiness or other relationship, which could
interfere with the exercise of independent judgenaerthe ability to act in the best interest of the
Bank. All the Independent Directors also continuéutfil the criteria and definition of ‘Independen
Director’ as stipulated in BNM CG Policy.

The Bank has adopted a nine (9) years policy fer tdnure of Independent Directors. Upon
completion of the nine (9) years, an Independentéd@r may continue to serve on the Board if the
Board has approved his/her re-appointment withmeeendation from the NRC, after the assessment
that the services of the Independent Director ¢ilerequired by the Bank and that the Director
concerned remains free of any business or othatioathip with the Bank which could reasonably be
perceived to materially interfere with his/her eige of unfettered and independent judgement. Any
re-appointment of Independent Director of this natis subject to the approval of BNM. As at the
date of this report, none of the Bank’s Independréctors have served for a cumulative period of
more than nine (9) years.

Board Responsibilities and Operation

In discharging its roles and responsibilities, Buard is guided by its Board Charter which outlines
among others, the respective roles, responsikilitied authorities of the Board (both individualhda
collectively), the Chairman and Managing Directdnikf Executive Officer (“MD/CEQ”) of the
Bank. This Charter serves as the basis of the iptex that govern the Board’s conduct and its
relationship with the stakeholders of the Bank.

The Board Charter will be reviewed as and when @gkeappropriate to ensure that it is up to date
and consistent with the Board’'s objectives and oesibilities as well as relevant regulatory
requirements. The Board Charter was last revieweldr@vised in August 2021and is available on the
Bank’s corporate website (www.icbhcmy.com) for refege. Other than the Board Charter, the Board
has also established a Terms of Reference (“TORiichvserves as a guidance to the Board in
discharging its duties effectively.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

()

(d)

Board Responsibilities and Operation(continued)

The Board is collectively responsible for effectigeersight of the Bank and the helming of the
Bank’s strategic direction and objectives, busir@ag, viability, and governance structure that wil
help to achieve ICBC Malaysia’'s strategic growttd afeliver sustainable shareholder value. The
Board is also responsible to set the risk appatité determine the principal risks for the Bank whil
at the same time, through the established Boardn@itte®s, to provide effective oversight of the
Bank’s performance, risk assessment and contrads business operations, and compliance with
regulatory requirements.

The day-to-day business operation of the Bank isaged by the MD/CEO who is assisted by the

Senior Management team. The MD/CEO and his Sen@ndgement team are accountable to the
Board for the performance of the Bank. Apart frdvat the Board has established Board Committees
which operate within clearly defined TORs primartly support the execution of its duties and

responsibilities.

The Board acknowledges the importance of a cleasidn of responsibilities between the Chairman
and MD/CEO. The roles of Chairman and MD/CEO aezdfore exercised by separate individuals to
ensure optimal balance, resulting in increased wadability and enhanced decision-making. The
roles and responsibilities of the Chairman and MB@Care also specified clearly in the Board
Charter of the Bank.

The Bank has also adopted a Code of Ethics forcRirs which is in line with the requirements of
BNM CG Policy and ensures that the Board continteeshape the ethical culture through its
leadership. The provisions of the Code of Ethiefwectors are aligned with the Code of Ethics and
Conduct for Staff (collectively referred to as “@sd) and the corporate culture of uncompromising
integrity and exceptional performance applicabl®sgthe ICBC Group.

The Bank adopts a zero-tolerance stance towaraetsyof bribery and corruption and is committed
to acting professionally, fairly and with integriip all business dealings and relationships. To
complement the existing Codes, the Bank has estaulithe Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy,
which emphasise on adherence to the Guidelinesdemate Procedures issued by Prime Minister’s
Department, covering five (5) principles (i.e. Topvel Commitment, Risk Assessment, Undertake
Control Measures, Systematic Review, Monitoring Bfdtcement and Training & Communication).
This reflects the Board and Senior Management'scdiéoin to upholding a high level of ethics,
integrity and good corporate governance in coofmratith relevant stakeholders.

Board and Board Committee Meetings

Directors are required to attend at least 75% Iahal Board/Board Committee meetings during each
financial year. The attendance of Directors at arBBoard Committee meeting by way other than

physical presence remains the exception ratherttteanorm and is subject to appropriate safeguards
to preserve the confidentiality of deliberation.

To facilitate a meaningful deliberation at Boardl 8oard Committees’ meetings, an annual schedule
of rolling agenda items has been drawn up to enthateall matters are given due consideration and
reviewed at the appropriate point in the finaneiadl regulatory cycle. The flexibility of the schézlu
enables pressing matters to be dealt with in alyime&nner when they arise. The agenda together
with the management reports and proposal papeffsigriehed to the Directors between 5 to 10 days
before the Board and Board Committees meetings.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
(d) Board and Board Committee Meetingqcontinued)

There is always an avenue for Non-Executive Dimsctm seek clarifications or obtain details

concerning the proposal papers/reports from theadament or the Company Secretary. The Non-
Executive Directors may seek independent profeasiadvice, at the Bank’s expense, should the
need arise in discharging their duties. Senior Mang&nt or Heads of Department are invited to
attend Board meetings to report to the Board onterstrelating to their respective areas of
responsibility and also to brief and provide detad the Directors on recommendations or reports
submitted to the Board.

At each Board/Board Committee meeting, the Chairofathe Board/Board Committee ensures all
Members of the Board/Board Committee have beenngmeportunities to express their views,
opinions and ideas to facilitate a proper decisi@king process by the Board/Board Committees. In
particular for Board meetings, the Board is infodntd decisions, salient issues and views raised at
the Board Committee meetings by the Chairmen of rdspective Committees. Minutes of the
respective Board Committee meetings are also tdblethe Board's information. All Board/Board
Committee meetings’ proceedings are properly resmbahd the minutes thereof are tabled at the next
meeting for confirmation by the Board/Board Comaet.

In between Board meetings and depending on thenaygef the matters, the Board may grant
approval by way of circular resolution in writingiguant to the Constitution of the Bank.

The Directors have a duty to declare immediatelythi® Board should they be interested in any
proposal being considered or transaction to berexhtimto directly or indirectly by the Bank. An
interested director is required to abstain frombdeations and decisions of the Board.

Since the onset of COVID-19, the Board has beesetyomonitoring not only the impact of the
pandemic on the global economy and the Bank’s dverancial performance, but also on the
general health and welfare of the Bank’'s employagenda items and matters discussed at the Board
and Board Committee meetings have been re-aligiwedrdingly to address various issues and
challenges which the pandemic presents. Thesed@duldressing the precautionary measures and
sustainability agenda imposed by Government andlaegs on the back of COVID-19 pandemic.
Apart from that, understanding the need to haveetlinteraction with the Management during this
time of crisis, members of the Board/Board Comragteave also made themselves available at any
time to discuss matters of importance. Ad-hoc megstare being held as and when required.

During FY2021, in line with the Movement Controlders (“MCQO”") imposed by the Government, as
well as the precautionary measures rolled out byBnk to control the spread of COVID-19, all the
planned and ad-hoc Board/Board Committee meetingaglthe financial year have been conducted
virtually by means of video-conferencing.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
(d) Board and Board Committee Meetingqcontinued)

All Directors have demonstrated that they are dableallocate sufficient time to the Bank in

discharging their duties and responsibilities, #rer commitment is affirmed by their attendance at
the Board and Board Committee meetings held duvig021, as reflected below:-

Attendance
Directors Board Audit Board Risk | Nomination and
as at 31 December 2021 Committee | Management| Remuneration
Committee Committee

Chang Zhenwang
Chairman/NINED 6/6 N/A N/A N/A
Wang Qiang
MD/CEO 6/6 N/A N/A N/A
Chin Chee Kong
INED 6/6 5/5 5/5 5/5
Ng Lip Yong
INED 6/6 5/5 5/5 5/5
Sum Leng Kuang
INED 6/6 5/5 5/5 5/5

(e) Training and Development of Directors

The Board recognises the importance of ensuringfrectors are continuously being developed to
acquire or enhance the requisite knowledge antd s&idischarge their duties effectively.

To this end, the Bank has put in place a Directémgiuction Programme for newly appointed
Directors to familiarise them with the industry well as the business operations of the Bank
addition to the regulatory Mandatory Accreditatidrogramme, i.e. Financial Institutions Directors’
Education Core Programme. Upon appointment, a niegcfor will attend the Induction Programme
organised by the Bank where he/she will be briedadan overview of the corporate strategies,
business operations, financial performance, busirisks and risk management strategies of the Bank
as well as the regulatory requirements of bankiaiyistry.

The Directors are also provided with opportunit@garticipate in training programmes and seminars
organised internally (including those organised tbg ICBC Group) or externally by relevant
regulatory authorities and professional bodiesrtatien their knowledge and keep abreast with the
relevant changes in law, regulations and the basieavironment.

The training programmes, conferences and forumendeid by the Directors of the Bank during
FY2021, were as follows:-
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(e) Training and Development of Directors(continued)

Director

Training Attended

Chang Zhenwang

= ICBC Group: Evolution of Economic and Financial Hanape and the Prospect
Post-Pandemic Era

= ICBC Group: Innovation of Financial Technology andvelopment of Inclusive
Finance

= In-house: Cyber Security Briefing

= ICBC Group: Analysis on Global and China’s Postgemic Economies

= ICBC Group: Ideas and Work Plans to Manage the Qiamge and Anti-Money
Laundering of Overseas Institutions

= In-house: Anti-Money Laundering/Counter Financirid@ errorism (“AML/CFT")

in

Wang Qiang

= In-house: Cyber Security Briefing

= ICBC Group: 2021 Compliance and AML Training forn8 Management of
Overseas Institutions

= ICBC Group: Online Training on Personal Countersdgsm Skills

= In-house: AML/CFT

= KPMG Webinar to ICBCM: AML/CFT Annual Refresher Tmang

= In-house: Briefing on Climate Risk CategorisatioarRework

Chin Chee Kong

= In-house: Cyber Security Briefing

= KPMG Webinar ~ Sustainable Finance: Making Betiaafcial Decisions

= Investment Opportunities in RMB and Prospect ofgarBonds

= Implementing Amendments in the Malaysian Code orp@@te Governance

= JC3 Identifying and Reporting Climate-related FitiahRisk Workshop (Climate-
related Disclosures)

= JC3 Annual Flagship Conference 2021: Sustainalakiya Business Strategy a
the Role of Finance

= JC3 Annual Flagship Conference 2021: Sustainakdlitya Business Strategy f
Financial Institutions (Institutional Banking Trgck

= JC3 Annual Flagship Conference 2021: Outcomes ampdidations for Malaysian,
Financial Institutions

= JC3 Annual Flagship Conference 2021: Sustainalslarieie for the Private Sectof

= Exploring Market Developments and Outlook

= Asian School of Business “Malaysian Code on Corgo@&overnance”

= AFA-MIA-CPA Australia “Integrated Reporting - Thes@an Experience”

= KPMG “Board and Audit Committee Priorities 2021”

= KPMG “A Dialogue with the CEO of IRB”

= RDS “Corporate Fraud - Looking Beyond the Boardrbom

= Deloitte “Digital Finance -Seeing is Believing”

= The National Recovery Summit

= In-house: AML/CFT

= KPMG Webinar to ICBCM: AML/CFT Annual Refresher Tmang

= KPMG Tax and Business Summit 2021

= KPMG 2021 MFRS Updates Seminar

= GO ESG ASEAN 2021 Virtual Summit

= Audit Oversight Board Conversation with Audit Contieé

= In-house: Briefing on Climate Risk CategorisatioarfRework

= KPMG: Proposed Special Voluntary Disclosure and Asty Program - Indirec
Taxes

hd
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(e) Training and Development of Directors(continued)

Director

Training Attended

Ng Lip Yong

= In-house: Cyber Security Briefing

= KPMG Webinar ~ Sustainable Finance: Making BetiaaRcial Decisions

= Investment Opportunities in RMB and Prospect ofd@rBonds

= Implementing Amendments in the Malaysian Code orp@ate Governance

= Risk Management in Technology (“RMiT") & Digital @ansformation: What they
mean for Governance and Strategy of Bank and InserBoards

= JC3 Annual Flagship Conference 2021: Sustainalalitya Business Strategy apd
the Role of Finance

= JC3 Annual Flagship Conference 2021: Sustainahdlifya Business Strategy for
Financial Institutions (Support Functions Track)

= JC3 Annual Flagship Conference 2021: Outcomes anpdidations for Malaysian,
Financial Institutions

= JC3 Annual Flagship Conference 2021: Sustainalplarfee for the Private Sectof

= Exploring Market Developments and Outlook

= Bond Connect Company Limited's ("BCCL") Webinar:IMRMB Become The
Next USD?

= BCCL Webinar: Development and Prospect of Chinangatcs and Bond
Market

= BCCL Webinar: Investment Opportunities in RMB and$pect of Green Bonds

» BCCL Webinar: Zooming into China’s Bond Market ¢&égic Investment Unde
Current Micro & Macroeconomics

= BCCL Webinar: Measuring the Creditworthiness of r@él'é Corporate Using a
Global Rating Scale

= In-house: AML/CFT

= KPMG Webinar to ICBCM: AML/CFT Annual Refresher Timang

= BCCL & CCB Taipei Webinar: Opening up of China GapiMarket - 2021 &
Beyond

= Foreign Policy Virtual Dialogue: Crypto's Impact Gitobal Finance

= HSBC Webinar: Quarterly FX Outlook

= The Foreign Policy Tech Forum - A Framework for Rdolicies that Work for
All

= BCCL Webinar: Unlocking New Opportunities in China

= Affin Hwang Webinar: A Dialogue on Budget 2022 -oposed Tax on Foreig
Source Income

= In-house: Briefing on Climate Risk CategorisatioarfRework

Sum Leng Kuang

= In-house: Cyber Security Briefing

= KPMG Webinar ~ Sustainable Finance: Making BetiaaFRcial Decisions

= Investment Opportunities in RMB and Prospect ofé@rBonds

= Implementing Amendments in the Malaysian Code orp@ate Governance

= RMIT & Digital Transformation: What they mean foio@rnance and Strategy (
Bank and Insurance Boards

= JC3 Annual Flagship Conference 2021: Sustainalalitya Business Strategy apd
the Role of Finance

= JC3 Annual Flagship Conference 2021: Sustainatdlitya Business Strategy o
Financial Institutions (Institutional Banking Trgck

= JC3 Annual Flagship Conference 2021: Outcomes anpdidations for Malaysian,
Financial Institutions

=+

=
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(e) Training and Development of Directors(continued)

Director Training Attended

Sum Leng Kuang|= JC3 Annual Flagship Conference 2021: Sustainallarieie for the Private Sectof

= BNM-FIDE Forum: The Role of Independent DirectorEmbracing Present anfl
Future Challenges

= BNM-FIDE Forum: The Future of Malaysia's Financactor

= BNM-FIDE Forum: Dialogue on RMIT Implementation

= FIDE Forum: Engagement Session on Board LeadeFshimework

= In-house: AML/CFT

= Khazanah: The Hasanah Forum 2021

= CFA ESG Webinar

= In-house: Briefing on Climate Risk CategorisatioarfRework

(N Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Appointment/Re-Appointment of Directors

The Bank has in place a Governance Policy on Ndiomand Appointment of Directors and
Succession Planning (“Governance Policy”), whicts st a clear and transparent nomination
process of Directors as well as the minimum catemd qualification required of a candidate for
appointment as Director of the Bank.

The primary goal of the nomination process is tmimate individuals, who, as a group, offer a
range of specialised knowledge, skills and expertisat can best contribute to enhancing the
Board, and therefore organisational success urnxistirgy and future circumstances. The said
policy is also aimed at setting out a systematipragch to orderly identify and select new
Directors in the event of an opening on the Bodrthe Bank, whether such opening exists by
reason of a planned retirement, an unplanned deparxpansion of the size of the Board or
otherwise, so as to ensure proper succession ptaand smooth functioning of the Board.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Financial Ses/idet 2013 and BNM CG Policy, the
appointment of a new Director is subject to thempapproval of BNM and will be for a specified
term of appointment. The NRC is responsible to wad#te a thorough assessment on the proposed
candidate by taking into account the criteria/regqmients as stated in the Governance Policy, Fit
and Proper Policy of the Bank and/or those impdsgdelevant regulatory authorities before
recommending an appointment proposal to the Boardapproval. Independent background
checks will also be conducted to verify the infotima disclosed in the Fit and Proper
Declarations of the proposed candidates.

In the case of Independent Directors, prior to memending to the Board for consideration,
interview session(s) will also be held by NRC teess the suitability of the candidates to be
appointed to the Board, during which the NRC wdlte into account, inter alia, the strategic and
effective fit of the candidates for the Board, thverall desired composition and the mix of
expertise and experience of the Board as a whole.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
( Appointment and Re-election of Directorgcontinued)

For the re-appointment of existing Directors, thBRQ\refers to the results of the individual
assessments conducted via the Board Performandealiva exercise in addition to their normal
interactions with the Directors. The NRC also assgghe Directors based on their performance
and contribution to the Board and Board Committetgir fithess and propriety, their
independence of view in respect of decision makiwhere deemed appropriate and time
commitment. Once approved by the Board, the apmicdor the re-appointment of Directors is
submitted to BNM for its consideration.

= Re-election of Directors

The Constitution of the Bank states that newly amed Directors shall hold office only until the
next annual general meeting (“AGM”) and then bgible for re-election. Further, one-third of
the Directors for the time being or the number es@ato one-third shall retire by rotation from
office and shall be eligible for re-election atle®GM. It is also stated that the CEO so appointed
where he/she is a director shall not, while holdimat office, be subject to retirement by rotation
or be taken into account in determining the rotatibretirement of directors.

(g) Board Performance Evaluation

The Bank conducts an annual Board Performance &tnatu(“BPE”) exercise with the objective of
assessing the performance of the Board as a wholrd Committees and individual Directors. The
results of the BPE form part of the basis for emtitn by the NRC for the re-appointment of
Directors.

The BPE is a questionnaire based self-assessmentisgxwhere Directors assess the performance of
the Board, Board Committees and individual Dirextdrhe assessment results will be tabled at the
NRC and the Board for review to enable the Boarddémtify and put in place actions to address
areas for improvement. All Directors will have assdo the final evaluation report for information
and improvement

The Bank has rolled-out the assessment questi@enfaiFY2021 to its Directors and the assessment
results thereof will be compiled for presentatiofN\iRC and the Board for review subsequently.

Apart from that, the Board, through the NRC, assdke fitness and propriety of the Directors in
accordance with the Bank’s Fit and Proper Policganjunction with the annual BPE exercise. All
Directors are required to complete a Fit & PropeecBration annually. The Fit & Proper
Declarations by the Directors are verified againdependent sources. For FY2021, the Board was
satisfied that each of the Directors has met thaired standard of fitness and propriety.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Audit Committee (“AC"paBl Risk Management Committee (“BRMC”) and
NRC to complement the Board in the execution ofdles and responsibilities. Each Board Committee
operates within its TOR, which clearly define itsn€tions and authorities. The aforesaid TORs are
reviewed from time to time to ensure that they riemalevant and are up-to-date.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

(&) Audit Committee

The AC comprises entirely INEDs. The AC supports Board with matters relating to financial
reporting, external audit, internal audit, intercahtrol processes and related party transactibns.
also works closely with BRMC in connection with @ssing the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control framework. The details of Adigties and responsibilities are set out in its TOR
which is published on the Bank’s corporate website.

During FY2021, five (5) AC meetings were held ahe tattendances of the AC members were
reported on page 11 of the Directors’ Report. Tée dctivities carried out by AC in FY2021 covered
the following:-

reviewed the quarterly reports and financial statei® of the Bank, focusing particularly on: (i)
any changes in accounting policies and practid@ssignificant matters highlighted including
financial reporting issues, significant judgememizde by Management, significant and unusual
events or transactions, and how these mattersdairessed; and (iii) compliance with accounting
standards and other legal requirements;

reviewed the audit plan of the external auditorhjctv encompassed the detailed terms of the
external auditors’ responsibilities and affirmatiofitheir independence as external auditors, audit
methodology, areas of audit emphasis for the fiigryear and any significant issues that could
be foreseen, either as a result of the past yeapgsrience or due to new accounting standards or
other changes in statutory requirements;

reviewed the results of the audit with the exteraalditors, if any together with their
recommendations and Management’s responses, dedétathe Audit Report in respect of the
Bank’s Statutory Audit for FY2021;

met twice with the external auditors without theggnce of Management for open discussions on
any issues of concern of the external auditoréngrisom their audit;

assessed the performance, effectiveness and irdiepen of the external auditors based on the
criteria set out in BNM’'s Policy Document on ExtarnAuditor and recommended the
appointment of new external auditors for FY2021h® Board, for consideration;

reviewed with Chief Internal Auditor (“CIA”) the tarnal audit plan to ensure adequacy of scope,
coverage and resources required to perform awdithé identified auditable areas;

reviewed the audit findings and recommendationsligigted by Internal Audit function and
ensured that Management had taken the necessaegtdae actions in a timely manner to address
control weaknesses, non-compliance with laws, etguy requirements and policies;

reviewed and assessed the full year performanteedhternal Audit function; and

reviewed related party transactions entered intthbyBank and its related parties, covering the
nature and amount of the transactions so as torertbat related party transactions were
undertaken on an arm’'s length basis, on normal cemtial terms and on terms that were not
more favourable to the related parties than thesemglly available to non-related parties.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

(b) Board Risk Management Committee

()

The BRMC comprises entirely INEDs. The BRMC is asted by the Board to undertake the
responsibilities to provide oversight and ensurgegaance of risks for the Bank. The Committee
oversees the risk management framework, reviewsrigke management activities and policies
formulated by the Management for approval by tharBolt assists the Board to ensure that the risk
exposures and outcomes affecting the Bank aretefcmanaged and addressed. The details of the
BRMC's duties and responsibilities are set outsnTiOR which is available on the Bank’s corporate
website.

During FY2021, five (5) BRMC meetings were held dhd attendance of the BRMC members is
reported on page 11 of the Directors’ Report. Thg #&ctivities carried out by BRMC in FY2021
covered the following:-

= reviewed and recommended risk management strategidisies and risk appetite levels for
Board’s approval;

= reviewed risk management reports which coveredajlabhd domestic economic developments,
risk headwinds, capital adequacy assessment, aiggrand thematic stress tests, credit risk,
market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, ldgé&k and strategic risk of the Bank;

= reviewed legal and compliance reports which inaludeew regulation updates, legal and
compliance risk incidents and Anti-Money Laundef@gunter Financing of Terrorism
(“AML/CFT") related updates;

» reviewed and recommended 3-year IT strategic mpaBdard’s approval; and

= reviewed and assessed the full year performancthefRisk Management and Compliance
functions.

Apart from the above and against the backdrop ®G®VID-19 crisis, the BRMC has reviewed and
deliberated in detail the Management’s analysighenchain impacts of COVID-19 outbreak to the
global and domestic fronts and business operatafnthe Bank (including the loan repayment
moratorium measures introduced by BNM) as wellh&sgroposed risk mitigation actions in relation
to the Bank’s credit exposures, liquidity positionarket risk, operational risk and capital adequacy
of the Bank.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The NRC comprises entirely INEDs. The NRC is resjiaa to support the Board in ensuring formal,
transparent and consistent procedures are esttlshthe Bank to govern the board composition,
performance assessment and development, fit angep@ssessment as well as appointment and
removal of Directors, Board Committee Members, 8elManagement and senior officers of control
functions. It also provides oversight and directionhuman resource and remuneration policies of the
Bank. The details of NRC’s duties and responsiédiare set out in its TOR which is available an th
Bank’s corporate website.

During FY2021, four (4) regular meetings and onesfiecial meeting were held to consider exigent
matters. The details of attendance of the NRC mesnaee reported on page 11 of the Directors’
Report. The key activities carried out by NRC inZ2021 included the following:-

= assessed the annual performance of individual Directhe Board as a whole and Board
Committees’ members via an internally conducted BR&cise;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committeg(continued)
= assessed the annual performance of Senior Managemeinternal control functions of the Bank;

= assessed and endorsed the 2021 key performancatorgi setting of internal control functions of
the Bank;

= assessed the fithess and propriety of DirectonsioB&lanagement and the Company Secretaries
as well as the independence of Independent Dirgctor

= reviewed and recommended to the Board the appomtmie Mr Xie Shaoxiong as the new
MD/CEO of the Bank;

= reviewed and recommended to the Board the re-appeirt of Mr Ng Lip Yong as the INED of
the Bank;

= reviewed and recommended to the Board the new ffreafice Management Policy of the Bank;
and

= reviewed the proposals relating to the employeesual increment and annual total remuneration
for FY2021.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Board affirms its commitment on its overallpessibility and oversight of the Bank’s system igkr
management and internal control. In acknowledgheg having a sound risk management and internal
control system is imperative, the Board has esthbli a governance structure that ensures effective
oversight of risk and internal controls in the Baatkall levels. To this end, the Board is assistgdhe
BRMC and AC, which have been delegated with primavgrsight responsibilities on the Bank’s risk
management and internal control system.

The Bank has implemented an ongoing process tdifigersvaluate, monitor, manage and respond to
significant risks faced by the Bank in its achieeamof the business goals and objectives amidst the
dynamic and challenging business environment aoteasing regulatory scruitinisation. This ongoing

process has been in place throughout FY2021 anddmisued up to the date of this report.

The key processes that the Board has establishptbtide effective governance and oversight of risk
management and internal control of the Bank incladgong others, the following:-

(a) Risk Governance and Oversight

The risk governance model provides a formalisethspparent and effective governance structure that
promotes active involvement from the Board and &@eMianagement in the risk management process
to ensure an integrated view of risks across thekBdhe governance model aims to place

accountability and ownership whilst facilitating appropriate level of independence and segregation
of duties between the three Lines of Defence. Tlemagement of risks broadly takes place at
different hierarchical levels and is embedded withie Bank’s three Lines of Defence:-
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK  (continued)

(a) Risk Governance and Oversigh{continued)

Lines of Defense| Functions Key Responsibilities
1st Line Business, Operation and Suppétesponsible for identifying and managing risks
Units which own and manage daljnherent in the products, activities, processes|and

to-day risks inherent in businegsystems for which it is accountable.
and activities.

2nd Line Risk Management, Complianfieesponsible for developing and implementing|the
and other middle/back officgrisk management framework and indepengent
departments control functions, which cover the identified rigks

that the Bank is exposed to.

3rd Line Internal Audit Responsible for providing dependent and
reasonable assurance over the comprehensiveness
and robustness of the internal control system,|risk
management practices and governance framewprk.

(b) Risk Management

()

The Chief Risk Officer (*CRO") and Risk Managemémuction are responsible for establishing and
facilitating the implementation of the Bank’s riskanagement framework as well as performing
periodic assessment of the consistency of the Barikk profile with risk appetite statement as

approved by the Board. The risk management fundsoguided by the Bank’s risk management

framework based on the guidelines issued by reteegyulatory authorities, Parent Bank and the best
practices in governing banking business.

Based on the risk management framework, the riskagmment processes have been defined to
effectively manage the identification, assessmentitoring and controlling of material risks. The
outcomes of the risk management processes have reperied periodically for supervision and
decision making purposes at both the ManagemenBaadl levels.

The details pertaining to the Bank’s financial rieknagement framework are set out on pages 87 to
108 of these financial statements.

Compliance

The Chief Compliance Officer (“CCQ") is the centmint of authority for the Bank’s compliance
matters and is responsible for providing an ingtituwide view on the management of compliance
risk. The CCO is supported by Compliance and Iater@ontrol Department (“CIC”) which
undertakes the function of identification, assesgnmaonitoring and reporting of compliance risk. In
carrying out the activities, CIC has adopted a baked approach in the management of compliance
risk.

The Bank has appointed compliance liaison offiadrdepartment and branch level who act as the
liaison in attending to compliance matters, promptigeneral compliance awareness among
employees of the respective departments/brancliekighlighting any compliance gaps and issues.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK  (continued)
(c) Compliance(continued)

The Bank is committed to the compliance with the IABIFT requirements by putting in place
AML/CFT programme as well as comprehensive polic@scedures and manuals. The AML/CFT
programme continues to be reviewed and updategflaxt changes in the operational needs, business
environment and regulatory requirements. This covareas on risk profiling of customers,
submission of cash threshold and suspicious tréinsareports, and handling of the investigation
orders issued by law enforcement authorities.

Training programmes are regularly arranged for eyg#s of the Bank on relevant legal and
regulatory requirements governing the Bank’s ati¢isi This aims to provide guidance to employees
on the implementation of internal controls to mamagmpliance risk.

(d) Internal Audit

The Internal Audit function is led by the CIA angtlg supported by a team with specialisation in key
risk areas. To preserve the independence of tleeniat Audit function, the CIA has a functional

reporting line to the AC, and administratively teetMD/CEO and Internal Audit Bureau of the

Parent Bank. The Internal Audit function is goverrend guided by the Bank's Audit Charter,

regulatory guidelines and policies of Parent Bank.

Internal Audit function adopts a risk-based apphoatriven by a systematic and comprehensive risk
assessment model in managing internal audit desviThe fundamental framework for the internal
audit function is based on the Committee of SpangdDrganisations of the Treadway Commission
framework, a well-recognised risk and control framoek for the evaluation of the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control.

Risk assessments on the auditable functions amucted annually to form the risk-based audit plan
for approval by the AC. The Internal Audit functidoacuses its efforts on performing audits and
reviews in accordance with the approved audit pigorovide independent assessment over adequacy
and effectiveness of risk management, internal robrgystem and governance structure of the
auditable functions. Executions of time-bound reiaealction plans are closely monitored to ensure
audit issues are resolved timely. The Internal Atutiction is also taking advisory role to add-walu

to the design and application of operating proceasé risk controls.

(e) Human Capital Management

One of the key constituents of any internal consigdtem is its people and that the system of risk
management and internal control is dependent orsdhad judgment, integrity and strong sense of
accountability that employees apply to their wofkerefore, the Bank has put in place relevant
policies and procedures that govern all aspectsiofan capital management from talent acquisition
and development, performance and consequence nmeag® cessation of employment.

The Bank is committed to conducting its businedf witegrity, sincerity and honesty in compliance
with the relevant governing laws, regulations andlglines. To this end, the Bank has established a
Compliance Handbook encompassing, among othersCtige of Ethics and Conduct for Staff
(“CECS"), Data Secrecy and Protection and ManagérérCustomer Information and Permitted
Disclosures which sets out the requirements impbygetie Bank and the regulatory authorities to be
observed and complied by all employees.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK  (continued)

(e) Human Capital Management(continued)

The CECS which sets out sound principles and stdadaf good practice to be observed and
complied by all employees aims at upholding thepproworking and ethical standards that are
expected by the Bank in its business dealings.

The Bank has established the Whistleblowing Pddiocy Procedures for Whistleblowing Reporting
(“Whistleblowing Policy and Procedures”) which pide an avenue for employees and third parties
to raise or report concerns in relation to anygdle unethical or questionable practices. At theesa
time, the Bank is wholly committed to ensuring @ticonfidentiality and to protect whistleblowers
from the risk of reprisal. The policy in relation Whistleblowing Reporting by Third Party is
available on the corporate website of the Bank.

The unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic poses a miatewenside risk to the economy. To date, the
Bank has been monitoring the risks associated whtrehis across multiple angles including credit
exposures, business, technology, and employeeysafensuring the continuity of the Bank’s business
While it remains uncertain what the new normal Wwél at the end of this crisis, or the full impatthos
pandemic to the Bank’s business operations, th& Bdlhcontinue to monitor this risk area closely.

REMUNERATION

(@)

(b)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Board recognises the importance of settingiraafad competitive remuneration package for
INEDs which is commensurate with their expertis@jliss responsibilities, risks and time
commitments being a Director of the Bank. The deteation of the INEDS’ remuneration is a matter
for the Board as a whole and is subject to the a@gbrof the shareholder. The level of remuneration
of INEDs is linked to their level of responsibiis.

Currently, the INEDs of the Bank receive Directofsés and meeting attendance allowances for
Board/Board Committee meetings attended. The nandeamount of each major element of the
remuneration of the MD/CEO and Non-Executive Divestfor FY2021 are disclosed in Note 30(c)
to the financial statements. In addition, Non-ExeeuDirectors also receive other benefits inclgdin
Directors & Officers Liability Insurance, providethat such Director has not acted negligently,
fraudulently or dishonestly, or in breach of his/taty of trust.

Remuneration Policy of the Bank

The Bank has established a Remuneration Policytwh&s been approved by the Board and is
subject to periodic review of the Board, includimgen material changes are made to the policy. The
Remuneration Policy provides a framework that cannpplemented and replicable year after year.
This is to ensure all employees are compensategl, faiansparently and with a proper governance
process across all levels of jobs.

Being a performance driven organisation, the peréorce measurement through quantitative
indicators, qualitative indicators and penalty paiich includes both financial and non-financial
goals, short term and long term perspectives aodrfiorates measures related to risk, compliance
and process control aims to support a performaasedculture which promotes prudent risk taking
and long term sustainability of the Bank.
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REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Remuneration Policy of the Bank(continued)

The Bank’s compensation approach is performanentaid, market aware and aligned with business
strategy and stakeholder interests. To ensuredimpetitiveness and effectiveness of remuneration as
well as transparency and internal equity, the jjpies of sustainable conduct and performance define
the key pillars of the remuneration policy.

There are two (2) main components, i.e. fixed reenation and variable remuneration which form
the total cash payable to employees of the Bank. fiXed remuneration refers to basic salary and
fixed allowances while the variable remuneratiofen® to the discretionary bonus which is cash
based.

The allocation of total cash, i.e. basic salaedi allowances and bonus is subject to the appadval
the Board on an annual basis based on the oviratfidial performance of the Bank and in alignment
with group-wide pre-defined guideline and formudd Isy the Parent Bank.

The total bonus pool of the Bank is subject to simjient upon taking into consideration of both
guantitative risk measures and qualitative risiconres.

The subsequent allocation of bonus for individuabyees is determined in accordance with the
performance assessment results of the employeeshandepartment or branch based on the pre-
defined matrix and may be adjusted based on theuatability of audit, risk and compliance findings
or disciplinary action.

In order to reinforce strong internal governancd tmsafeguard the independence and authority of
control functions, i.e. Internal Audit, Compliana@nd Risk Management of the Bank, the
performance and remuneration of the control fumstiare measured and assessed independently
from the departments and branches they suppovitid any conflict of interests.

From the perspective of prudent risk taking andyléerm sustainability as well as the alignment
between risk and reward of the Bank, a portionafus for Senior Management, Senior Officers and
Other Material Risk Takers of the Bank is subjectiéferment of six (6) to twelve (12) months from

the financial year end with the deferred portioaréasing in tandem with the individual's level of

accountability.

The vesting of bonus or deferred bonus is subjecfirial results of individual performance
assessment and the overall financial performant¢keoBank. The Board and Senior Management of
the Bank reserve the discretion to make potentaistment, forfeiture or through malus on any
bonus or deferred bonus that has not been paid t@sied to the employees within thirteen (13)
months from the financial year end in the eventesignation or cessation of employment with the
Bank or ICBC Group, misconduct or material restaenof financial results of the Bank.

All the Senior Management, Senior Officers and ©Material Risk Takers of the Bank are required
to commit not to undertake activities such as pwbdedging strategies and liability related
insurance that will undermine the risk alignmeri¢els embedded in their remuneration.
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REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Remuneration Policy of the Bank(continued)

The following depicts the remuneration awarded e Senior Management, Senior Officers and
Other Material Risk Takers of the Bank for FY2021:-

Senior Management and Other Material Risk
Category Senior Officers Takers
(8 headcounts) (11 headcounts)

Total Value of remuneration Unrestricted Deferred | Unrestricted| Deferred

awards for the financial year RM’000 RM’000 RM'000| RM'000
Fixed Remuneration
* Cash-based 5,352 - 4,665 -
* Shares and share-linked instrumernts - - - -
* Others - - - -
Variable Remuneration
* Cash-based 1,988 231 1,352 225
* Shares and share-linked instrumernts - - - -
* Others - - - -

The Senior Management and Senior Officers of thekBae defined as the MD/CEO, Deputy CEO,
Assistant CEO, CCO, CIA and CRO.

Other Material Risk Takers of the Bank are defimasdindividuals whose responsibilities have a
material impact on the performance and risk profieé the Bank and individuals whose
responsibilities require them to take on mateigld exposure on behalf of the Bank.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

It is the Board’'s commitment to present a balanaed meaningful assessment of the Bank’s financial
performance and prospects at the end of the finhnaar, primarily through the annual financial
statements to BNM. The Board is assisted by thead\@versee the Bank’s financial reporting process a
the quality of its financial reporting.

Directors’ responsibility statement in respect of e preparation of the audited financial statements

The Board is responsible for ensuring that thenfiiel statements give a true and fair view of ttaesof
affairs of the Bank as at the end of the finangedr and of its financial performance and cash $ldov

the year then ended. In preparing the financidéstants, the Directors have ensured that the mgpar
and fair presentation of these financial statemargsin accordance with Malaysian Financial Repgrti
Standards, International Financial Reporting Stesglethe requirements of the Companies Act 2016 and
other regulatory requirements in Malaysia in altenal respects.

Relationship with the Auditors

Key features underlying the relationship of the w@h the external auditors are included in the AC’s
TOR.
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

Before the financial statements of the Bank werdar@ut, the Directors took reasonable steps tatagte
that:-

(a) all known bad debts have been written off athelgaate provision has been made for doubtful debts;
and

(b) any current assets which were unlikely to baised in the ordinary course of business have been
written down to an amount which they might be expeso to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are neae of any circumstances:-

() that would render the amount written off fodb#ebts or the amount of the provision for doubtful
debts in the Bank inadequate to any substantiah&xor

(b) that would render the value attributed to tlierent assets in the financial statements of thekBa
misleading; or

(c) which has arisen which render adherence textising method of valuation of assets and liabaitof
the Bank misleading or inappropriate; or

(d) not otherwise dealt with in this report or fir@ncial statements, that would render any ametated
in the financial statements of the Bank misleading.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:-

(&) any charge on the assets of the Bank that fisenasince the end of the financial year and which
secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(b) any contingent liability in respect of the Bathlat has arisen since the end of the financial gdeer
than those arising from the ordinary course ofihieking business.

No contingent liability or other liability of the @k has become enforceable, or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months raftee end of the financial year which, in the opmbf

the Directors, will or may substantially affect thbility of the Bank to meet its obligations as awviten
they fall due.

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial merhance of the Bank for the financial year ended 31
December 2021 has not been substantially affecyednly item, transaction or event of a material and
unusual nature nor has any such item, transactiewvent occurred in the interval between the entthaif
financial year and the date of this report.



Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M)

AUDITORS
The auditors, Deloitte PLT have indicated theilimgness to accept re-appointment.
The auditors’ remuneration is disclosed in Noté®the financial statements.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in adeoice with a resolution of the Directors.

Chin Chee Kong
Director

Sum Leng Kuang
Director

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Date: 18 May 2022
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Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO
Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016

We, Chin Chee Kong and Sum Leng Kuang being twih@Directors of Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China (Malaysia) Berhad, do hereby state on lbelidhe Directors that, in our opinion, the firaal
statements set out on pages 32 to 109 are drawn apcordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards, International Financial Reporting Steagland the requirements of the Companies Act 2016
Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of fihancial position of the Bank as at 31 Decembet120
and of its financial performance and cash flowstlieryear then ended.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in adasice with a resolution of the Directors:-

Chin Chee Kong
Director

Sum Leng Kuang
Director

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Date: 18 May 2022
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(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATUTORY DECLARATION PURSUANT TO
Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016

I, Xie Shaoxiong, the Officer primarily responsibler the financial management of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad, do swlly and sincerely declare that the financial
statements set out on pages 32 to 109 are, teeteobmy knowledge and belief, correct and | midiie
solemn declaration conscientiously believing thelatation to be true, and by virtue of the Statytor
Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the above naiiedShaoxiong, (PP no. PE1524237), in Kuala
Lumpur, Malaysia on 18 May 2022

Xie Shaoxiong

BEFORE ME:
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Member of

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad
Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statementdnofustrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Malaysia) Berhad, which comprise the statement of financial positas at 31 December
2021, and the statements of profit or loss androtbenprehensive income, statements of
changes in equity and statements of cash flowdheryear then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of sigaifit accounting policies, as set out on
pages 32 to 109.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statetsgive a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Bank as at 31 December 2021, arbeif financial performance and their cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance witHayan Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards andrélggiirements of the Companies Act, 2016
in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with apprastaddards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing. Our respotigés under those standards are further
described in théuditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the &ntial Statementsection of
our report. We believe that the audit evidence aelobtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Bank in accordance \méhBly-Laws (on Professional Ethics,
Conduct and Practige of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“Bywws) and the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accourstamtternational Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including Internationatiépendence Standar(f$ESBA Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical respongibs in accordance with the By-Laws and the
IESBA Code.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements andAuditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Bank are responsible for ttieeioinformation. The other information
comprises the Directors’ Report, but does not ihelthe financial statements of the Bank and
our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Bdaks not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclilsereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statnts of the Bank, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, casidhether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial staterseof the Bank or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materiallgtaied.

If, based on the work we have performed, we corecthdt there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to repbdttfact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the FinanciaStatements

The Directors of the Bank are responsible for treparation of financial statements of the
Bank that give a true and fair view in accordangd Walaysian Financial Reporting Standard,
International Financial Reporting Standards andréagiirements of Companies Act, 2016 in
Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible fathsinternal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparatidimasicial statements of the Bank that are
free from material misstatement, whether due todrar error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Béimd,Directors are responsible for assessing the
Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, ldisiag, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of atioguanless the Directors either intend to
liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or Imavealistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurdrmé ahether the financial statements of the
Bank as a whole are free from material misstatemenether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opiniBeasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an auditictetlin accordance with approved standards
on auditing in Malaysia and International StandamsAuditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements came drsn fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, theyuld reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the bastsesttfinancial statements.



30

As part of an audit in accordance with approvedddads on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing, we exercisefgssional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. Vée:al

Identify and assess the risks of material misstant of the financial statements of
the Bank, whether due to fraud or error, design pedorm audit procedures

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evieléhat is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resigtirom error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misregaetations, or the override of

internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control valg to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the cistantes, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of taekBs internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting iesliased and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures matteelDirectors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Direttms of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence olotavmeether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may samificant doubt on the Bank’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we code that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in ouditaus’ report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements of the Bamk if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusians based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ reportwigeer, future events or conditions
may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a goimgern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure @natent of the financial statements of
the Bank, including the disclosures, and whetherfithancial statements of the Bank
represent the underlying transactions and eventa manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Directors, among other engttthe planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, includiagy significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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Other Matter

The financial statements of the Bank for the yaateel 31 December 2020 were audited by
another auditor who expressed an unmodified opiaiothose statements on 12 May 2021.

This report is made solely to the member of thekBas a body, in accordance with Section
266 of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia andnforother purpose. We do not assume
responsibility to any other person for the contarthis report.

DELOITTE PLT (LLP0010145-LCA)
Chartered Accountants (AF 0080)

WONG KAR CHOON
Partner —-03153/08/2022J
Chartered Accountant

18 May 2022
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Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2 021
Note 2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000

ASSETS
Cash and short-term funds 4 736,272 744,489
Deposits and placements with banks and other

financial institutions 5 145,809 129,834
Financial investments measured at fair value thnaatber

comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) 6 465,085 542,881
Financial investments measured at amortised cost 7 451,324 223,679
Loans, advances and financing 8 2,245,208 2,379,326
Derivative financial assets 9 3,194 2,313
Other assets 10 17,610 16,549
Statutory deposits with Bank Negara Malaysia 11 808, 20,402
Tax recoverable 5,843 9,163
Property and equipment 12 5,111 3,753
Right-of-use assets 13 8,163 10,800
Intangible asset 14 - -
Deferred tax assets 15 10,485 11,158
TOTAL ASSETS 4,112,910 4,094,347
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 16 1,923,893 1,976,414
Deposits and placements of banks and other

financial institutions 17 888,494 840,051
Derivative financial liabilities 9 388 3,190
Other liabilities 18 40,426 44,599
Lease liabilities 13 8,021 10,549
Provision for commitments and contingencies 19 @,74 5,453
Provision for taxation 20 91 235
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,864,059 2,880,491
EQUITY
Share capital 21 832,609 832,609
Reserves 22 416,242 381,247
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNER OF THEBANK | 1,248,851 1,213,856
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 4,112,910 4,094,347
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 32 2,292,192 2,257,653

The notes on pages 38 to 109 are an integral pHrese financial statements.
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Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
Note 2021 2020
RM’'000 RM’'000

Interest income 23 112,643 150,510
Interest expense 23 (31,978) (47,741)
Net interest incon 23 80,665 102,769
Net nor-interest income 24 36,321 30,586
Net operating incon 116,986 133,355
Other operating expenses 25 (71,253) (70,777)
Operating profit 45,733 62,578
Write-back of/(Allowance for) impairment on loamslvances

and financing 26 20,056 (9,720)
Write-back of/(Allowance for) impairment on othémndncial assets 27 838 (523)
Profit before taxation 66,627 52,335
Tax expense 28 (20,748) (11,743)
Profit for the year 45,879 40,592
Other comprehensive (expense)/income, net of tax
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequénblyn)/to profit

or loss
Foreign currency translation reserve

- Currency translation differences in respectooéiign operations 1,313 134
Fair value reserve

- Changes in fair value (14,446) 9,493

- Amount transferred (from)/to profit or loss ]Q3) 186

- Deferred tax adjustment 15 3,852 (2,323)

(12,197) 7,356

Total other comprehensive (expense)/income foy#ae (10,884) 7,490
Total comprehensive income for the year 34,995 083,
Basic earnings per ordinary share (sen): 29 5.51 88 4.

The notes on pages 38 to 109 are an integral parese financial statements.
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Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 1 DECEMBER 2021

At 1 January 2020
Total comprehensive income for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequimtl
profit or loss
Foreign currency translation reserve
- Currency translation differences in respect of
foreign operations
Fair value reserve
- Changes in fair value
- Amount transferred to profit or loss
- Deferred tax adjustment

Total other comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

At 31 December 2020

34
< Non-Distributable » Distributable
Foreign
Currency
Share Translation Fair Value Regulatory Retained Total
Capital Reserve Reserve Reserve earnings Equity
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000
832,609 (261) 11,383 17,644 304,399 1,165,774
- 134 - - - 134
- - 9,493 - - 9,493
- - 186 - - 186
- - (2,323) - - (2,323
- - 7,356 - - 7,356
- 134 7,356 - - 7,490
- - - - 40,592 40,592
- 134 7,356 - 40,592 48,082
832,609 (127) 18,739 17,644 344,991 1,213,856
Note 21 Note 22 (a) Note 22 (b) Note 22 (c) Note 22 (d)



Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad

Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 1 DECEMBER 2021 (continued)

At 1 January 2021
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year
Other comprehensive income/(expense), net of tax
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequti{from)
profit or loss
Foreign currency translation reserve
- Currency translation differences in respect of
foreign operations
Fair value reserve
- Changes in fair value
- Amount transferred from profit or loss
- Deferred tax adjustment

Total other comprehensive income/(expense) for éhyear
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year

At 31 December 2021

The notes on pages 38 to 109 are an integral parese financial statements.
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<«—— Non-Distributable » Distributable
Foreign
Currency
Share Translation Fair Value Regulatory Retained Total
Capital Reserve Reserve Reserve Earnings Equity
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
832,609 (227) 18,739 17,644 344,991 1,213,856
- 1,313 - - - 1,313
- - (14,446) - - (14,446
- - (1,603) - - (1,603
- - 3,852 - - 3,852
- - (12,197) - - (12,197)
- 1,313 (12,197) - - (10,884)
- - - - 45,879 45,879
- 1,313 (12,197) - 45,879 34,995
832,609 1,186 6,542 17,644 390,870 1,248,851
Note 21 Note 22 (a) Note 22 (b) Note 22 (c) Note 22 (d)
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Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEM BER 2021

Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Property and equipment written off
Gain on derecognition of right-of-use assets
(Write-back of)/Allowance for impairment on loamslvances and
financing
(Write-back of)/Allowance for impairment on otHerancial assets
Net unrealised (gains)/losses arising from derreatading
Transfer to foreign currency translation reserve
Accretion of discounts net of amortisation of prams of financial
investments measured at FVOCI
Accretion of discounts net of amortisation of premms of financial
investments measured at amortised cost
Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in operating assets
Deposits and placements with banks and otherdiahimstitutions
Loans, advances and financing
Other assets
Statutory deposits with Bank Negara Malaysia

Changes in operating liabilities
Deposits from customers
Deposits and placements of banks and other finhimstitutions
Other liabilities
Cash from/(used in) operations
Income taxes paid
Income taxes refunded

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows (used in)/from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment
Net proceeds from financial investments measuréy/e@CI
Net purchase of financial investments measurednattised cost

Net cash used in investing activities

36
2021 2020
RM'000 RM'000
66,627 52,335
1,391 3,358
4,763 4,481
178 263
5 10
- (190)
(20,056) 9,720
(838) 523
(3,683) 252
313 134
1,126 791
2,888 269
733 71,946
(15,975) 41,729
151,467 523,942
(1,061) (569)
1,596 20,915
(52,521)  (891,942)
48,443  (93,663)
(4,173) (36,669)
181,490  (364,311)
(14,015)  (16,742)
968 -
168,443  (381,053)
(2,754) (925)
62,224 60,609
(231,249) (107,201)
(171,779)  (47,517)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEM BER 2021 (continued)
2021 2020
Note RM'000 RM'000
Cash flows used in financing activity
Net payment of lease liabilities (4,832) (4,787)
Net cash used in financing activity (4,832) (4,787)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (8,168)  (433,357)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the finaral year 744,489 1,177,767
736,321 744,410
Add: (Allowance for)/Write-back of credit loss ftre year (49) 79
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financiabgr 736,272 744,489
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash and short-term funds 4 736,272 744,489
Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cashléws arising from financing activity:
2021 2020
Note RM'000 RM'000
Lease liabilities
At 1 January 10,549 9,918
Acquisition of new leases 2,126 10,054
Net payment of lease liabiliti (4,832) (4,787)
Interest expense on lease liabilities 178 263
Termination of leases - (4,899)
At 31 December 13 8,021 10,549
Cash outflows for leases as a lessee
Included in net cash (used in)/from operating actiiies:
Payment relating to short-term leases 25 2 5
Payment relating to leases of low-value assets 25 2 35
4 40
Included in net cash used in financing activity:
Principal paid in relation to lease liabilities 4,654 4,524
Interest paid in relation to lease liabilities 178 263
4,832 4,787
Total cash outflows for leases 4,836 4,827

The notes on pages 38 to 109 are an integral pHrese financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDE D 31 DECEMBER 2021
1. General information

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Malaysggrhad is a public limited liability company
incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The Bankrisicipally engaged in the provision of banking
and other related financial services. The addré&s megistered office and principal place of mesis

is as follows:-

Level 10, Menara Maxis
Kuala Lumpur City Centre
50088 Kuala Lumpur

The Directors regard Industrial and Commercial Bah&hina Limited, a corporation incorporated in
China, as the holding corporation of the Bank.

The financial statements were authorised for iégune Board of Directors on 18 May 2022.
2. Basis of preparation
(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Bank have beenapeepin accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards (*MFRSs”), International FinahcReporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

The following are the accounting standards, inttgiions and amendments that have been issued
by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MApBuUt have not been adopted by the
Bank:-

Amendment effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021
* Amendment to MFRS l&eases Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30202k
Amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

* Amendments to MFRS First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial RepodirStandards
(Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018-2020)

« Amendments to MFRS Business Combinations - Reference to the Conceptaatework

* Amendments to MFRS $inancial Instruments (Annual Improvements to MFR&hdards
2018-2020)

* Amendments to MFRS 118roperty, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds beforernded Use

* Amendments to MFRS 13Rrovisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingenssats -
Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

* Amendments to MFRS 14HAgriculture (Annual Improvements to MFRS Stand&2€i&8-
2020
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2. Basis of preparation(continued)

(@)

(b)

(©)

Statement of compliancgcontinued)
MFRSs and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

* MFRS 17,Insurance Contracts

* Amendments to MFRS 1Msurance Contracts - Initial Application of MFR% and MFRS 9
- Comparative Information

* Amendments to MFRS 101Presentation of Financial Statements - Classifatiof
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Disclogsgrof Accounting Policies

« Amendments to MFRS 108\ccounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimaed
Errors - Definition of Accounting Estimates

* Amendments to MFRS 11Zcome Taxes - Deferred Tax related to Assets aaldilities
arising from a Single Transaction

MFRSs, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date yet to be confirmed

« Amendments to MFRS 1Qonsolidated Financial Statemerssd MFRS 128Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contrilutd Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The Bank plans to apply those of the abovementiaeedunting standards and amendments:

 From the annual period beginning on 1 January 263P are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022, except forAdments to MFRS 1, Amendments to
MFRS 3, Amendments to MFRS 116, Amendments to MERBand Amendments to MFRS
141 which are not applicable to the Bank.

* From the annual period beginning on 1 January 2038 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023, except foREFAL7 and Amendments to MFRS 101,
insofar as this standard relates to @lassification of Liabilities as Current or Non-cent
which is not applicable to the Bank.

The initial applications of the accounting standaeidd amendments are not expected to have any
material financial impact to the current period amnidr period financial statements of the Bank

Basis of measurement

The financial statements of the Bank have beengpeeipon the historical cost basis other than as
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Ringgalasia (*RM”), which is the Bank’'s

functional currency. All financial information isrgsented in RM and has been rounded to the
nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial information and finehcstatements in conformity with MFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimadesssaumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts dftastiabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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2. Basis of preparation(continued)
(d) Use of estimates and judgemen{sontinued)

Estimates and underlying assumptions are revieweahoongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in whictesttenates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

There are no significant areas of estimation uag@st and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have significant effect i@ amounts recognised in the financial
statements other than those disclosed in the follpwotes:-

* Note 34.3 - Valuation of financial instruments
* Note 34.4(b) - Expected credit loss (“ECL") measueat

3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have beetieapponsistently to the periods presented in these
financial statements unless otherwise stated.

(a) Foreign currency
(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translatethé functional currency of the Bank at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated ini§preurrencies at the end of the reporting
period are retranslated to the functional curraaidyne exchange rate at that date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominatefibiieign currencies are not retranslated at
the end of the reporting period except for thoss dre measured at fair value which are
retranslated to the functional currency at the arde rate at the date that the fair value was
determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on retransfa@re recognised in profit or loss, except
for differences arising from the retranslation qgfigy instruments designated as measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“EBYQ which are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

(i) Operations denominated in functional currencies other than Ringgit Malaysia

The assets and liabilities of operations denoméaiefunctional currencies other than RM,

are translated to RM at exchange rates at the etiteareporting period. The income and

expenses of the foreign operations are translatddM at average exchange rates for the
period.

All resulting exchange differences are recognisedother comprehensive income and
accumulated in the Foreign Currency TranslatioreRes(“FCTR”) in equity.

When settlement of a monetary item receivable fampayable to a foreign operation is
neither planned nor likely in the foreseeable fefdoreign exchange gains and losses arising
from such a monetary item are considered to form pfaa net investment in a foreign
operation and are recognised in other compreheirsieene, and are presented in the FCTR
in equity.
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Interest recognition

Interest income and expense are recognised int @nofoss using the effective interest method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that eyatidcounts the estimated future cash payments and
receipts through the expected life of the finanagdet or liability (or, where appropriate, a skort
period) to the net carrying amount of the finanaisset or liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Bank estimates future cash fllamsidering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument, but not future credit losses.

Interest income is recognised at gross basis fianfiial assets under Stage 1 and Stage 2 ECL.
However, interest income is recognised at net Basinancial assets under Stage 3 ECL.

Fees recognition

Loan arrangement fees which are material are réesegms income when all conditions precedent
are fulfilled. Guarantee fees and commitment febglvare material are recognised as income
based on time apportionment.

Other fee income on services and facilities extdnidecustomers are recognised as the related
services are performed.

Other fee expenses relating mainly to transactiwhsrvice fees, are expensed off as the services
are received.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current tax and @efdex. Current tax and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss except to the exthat it relates to items recognised directly in gqui
or other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or rec&vab the taxable income or loss for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enactethéyend of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previouartial years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability noethproviding for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitieshia $tatement of financial position and their tax
bases. Deferred tax is not recognised for the teanpodifferences arising from the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transactihat affects neither accounting nor taxableiprof
or loss. Deferred tax is measured at the tax tatsare expected to be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laatshdve been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)

(d) Income tax expensécontinued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsehdré is a legally enforceable right to offset cotre
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to rimedaxes levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity, or on different tax entitlag, they intend to settle current tax liabilitiesda
assets on a net basis or their tax assets anlitigsbwill be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extextitls probable that future taxable profits viod
available against which the temporary differencas loe utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and are redtaéute extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realised.

(e) Financial instruments

(i)

(ii)

Initial recognition and measurement

The Bank initially recognises loans and advanceppsits and debt securities issued on the
date they are originated. Regular way purchasesaleg of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date at which the Bank commits to puehassell the assets. All financial assets

and liabilities (including assets and liabilitiessignated at fair value through profit or loss)

are initially recognised in the statement of finahposition when, and only when, the Bank

becomes a party to the contractual provisions @fritruments.

A financial asset or financial liability is measdraitially at its fair value plus or minus, for a
financial instrument not at fair value through frroi loss (“FVTPL”), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition oriaace.

Financial instrument categories and subsequenneasurement

Financial Assets

Categories of financial assets are determined tialinecognition and are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless ®B&nk changes its business model for
managing financial assets in which case all aftedieancial assets are reclassified on the
first day of the first reporting period followingé change of the business model.

Amortised cost

A financial instrument is measured at amortised dothe asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets to coblectractual cash flows, and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specifiates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amountstanding. The financial assets are not
designated as at fair value through profit or IdSgbsequent to initial recognition, these
financial assets are measured at amortised cosy ube effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment lossesrdst income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profioes.| Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)
(e) Financial instruments(continued)
(i) Financial instrument categories and subsequenneasurement(continued)
Financial Assets(continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income -tDelestments

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI only if #sset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting m@mtual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and the contractual terms of the finarasdaét give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal ancetiest on the principal amount outstanding.
The debt investment is not designated as at fairevirough profit or loss. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairmenteaognised in profit or loss. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in other compriekensome. On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in other comprehensive incomeealassified to profit or loss.

Interest income is recognised by applying effectinterest rate to the gross carrying amount
except for credit impaired financial assets (setelqgl)(i)) where the effective interest rate is
applied to the amount net of ECL.

Fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets, including derivative financassets, not measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI are classified as measured at FVTPL. On ahitiecognition, the Bank may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otilsenmneets the requirements to be measured
at amortised cost or at FVOCI to be measured at HiVTf doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch thauld otherwise arise. Subsequently,
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at thaiwéie. Net gains or losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognised inipoofloss.

All financial assets, except for those measuredFdTPL are subject to impairment
assessment (see Note 3(1)(i)).

Financial Liabilities
The categories of financial liabilities at initi@cognition are as follows:-

Fair value through profit or loss

Fair value through profit or loss category commi§@ancial liabilities that are derivatives
(except for a derivative that is a financial guaeancontract or a designated and effective
hedging instrument), contingent consideration irbwsiness combination and financial
liabilities that are specifically designated infiistcategory upon initial recognition.

On initial recognition, the Bank may irrevocablysimate a financial liability that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amodistdis one to be measured at fair value
through profit or loss:-

- if doing so eliminates or significantly reducesaccounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise;

-a group of financial liabilities or assets andaficial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis doom@ance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy, and informatimut the group is provided internally on
that basis to the Bank’s key management persoanel;
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)
(e) Financial instruments(continued)
(i) Financial instrument categories and subsequenneasurement(continued)
Financial Liabilities (continued)

- if a contract contains one or more embedded divies and the host is not a financial asset
in the scope of MFRS 9, where the embedded derevaignificantly modifies the cash flows
and separation is not prohibited.

Financial liabilities categorised as fair valueotlngh profit or loss are subsequently measured
at their fair value with gains or losses, includamy interest expense are recognised in profit
or loss.

For a financial liability that is designated asr faalue through profit or loss upon initial
recognition, the Bank recognises the amount of ghan fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to change in credit risk ihestcomprehensive income and the remaining
amount of the change in fair value in profit ordosinless the treatment of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk would createenlarge an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost
Other financial liabilities not categorised as featue through profit or loss are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effectivedstenethod.

Interest expense and foreign exchange gains asdda@e recognised in profit or loss. Any
gains or losses on derecognition are also recadjivisgrofit or loss.

(iii) Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the camtaight to receive cash flows from the
assets has expired; or when the Bank has trandfasreontractual right to receive the cash
flows of the financial assets, and either substdintall the risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred; or the Bank has neitheinegtanor transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership, but has not rethaostrol of the assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the diffeeebetween the carrying amount and the sum
of consideration received (including any new asdeined less any new liability assumed)
and any cumulative gain or loss that had been resed in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the lBagontractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled, or expire.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difence between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished or transferred &mother party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or tissilassumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

(iv) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are efffand the net amount reported in the statement
of financial position when there is a legally emfable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basisealised the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net bisigten permitted under the MFRSs.



Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M) 45

3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and lbalakces with banks and other financial
institutions and money at call and deposits andgptents maturing within one month, which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in thegirfvalue, and are used by the Bank in the
management of its short-term commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are initially recogneethir value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest methoet of allowance for credit loss. The
measurement of credit loss is based on a three-gtagected credit loss model as described in
Note 3(1)(i).

Deposits and placements with banks and othemfancial institutions

Deposits and placements with banks and other fiahngstitutions including placements with
BNM are initially recognised at fair value and sedpsently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method, net of allowance fodiréoss. The measurement of credit loss is based
on a three-stage expected credit loss model asiloeden Note 3(1)(i).

Other receivables

Other receivables are initially recognised at tloeists when the contractual right to receive cash
or another financial asset from another entitysislglished.

Subsequent to initial recognition, other receivabdge measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Property and equipment

Recognition and measurement
Items of property and equipment costing RM1,00@nhore each are capitalised and are measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accueaulsipairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attable to the acquisition of the asset and any
other costs directly attributable to bringing tilsset to working condition for its intended use, and
the costs of dismantling and removing the items rastbring the site on which they are located,
and capitalised borrowing costs. Purchased softwatis integral to the functionality of the
related equipment is capitalised as part of thaipegent.

When significant parts of an item of property aigiipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major componehpspperty and equipment.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item ofpprty and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable tittae future economic benefits embodied within the
component will flow to the Bank and its cost canrbeasured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced component is derecognised to profidss. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of
property and equipment are recognised in profibss when incurred.



Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M) 46

3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)

(i)

()

Property and equipment(continued)

Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an assetitesssidual value. Significant components of
individual assets are assessed, and if a compdrent useful life that is different from the
remainder of that asset, then that component iredigted separately.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss ortraight-line basis over the estimated useful life o
each component of an item of property and equiprsi@ce this most closely reflects the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic bighefmbodied in the asset. The property and
equipment are depreciated commencing from the meuttsequent to the month of addition, and
depreciation is accounted for up to the month gpasal at the following annual rates:-

Depreciation rate per annum {

Electronic equipme 33.3¢

Office equipment, fixtures and fittings 20

Computer software 10

Improvement on leased as: Over the lease peri

Property and equipment under construction are eptetiated until the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Depreciation methods, rates, useful lives and vesidalues are reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and adjusted as appropriate.

Disposal and write-off

On disposal of an item of property and equipmené difference between the net disposal
proceeds and its carrying amount is taken to posfibss. Disposal proceeds may also apply to
fully depreciated assets. Where an item of propanty equipment is no longer in use, it will be
written off.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contcactveys a right to control the use of an iderdifie
asset for a period of time in exchange for consitilem. To assess whether a contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset, Bank assesses whether:-

» the contract involves the use of an identified fssthis may be specified explicitly or
implicitly, and should be physically distinct ompresent substantially all of the capacity of a
physically distinct asset. If the supplier has bssantive substitution right, then the asset is
not identified;

» the customer has the right to obtain substantallpf the economic benefits from the use of
the asset throughout the period of use; and

» the customer has the right to direct the use ofaset. The customer has this right when it
has the decision-making rights that are most relet@changing how and for what purpose
the asset is used. In rare cases where the deais@rn how and for what purpose the asset is
used is predetermined, the customer has the rigttréct the use of the asset if either the
customer has the right to operate the asset; ocul®mer designed the asset in a way that
predetermines how and for what purpose it will becu
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)
() Leases(continued)

At inception or on reassessment of a contractdbatains a lease component, the Bank allocates
the consideration in the contract to each leasermmdlease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone prices. However, for leasegroperties in which the Bank is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate non-lease components dindsiead account for the lease and non-lease
components as a single lease component.

Recognition and initial measurement
As a lessee

The Bank recognises a right-of-use asset and a liedmlity at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cogtjclw comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments maderabefore the commencement date, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate aftsdo dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site tichvit is located, less any lease incentives
received.

The lease liability is initially measured at thegent value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted using theegtteate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Bank’s incremidyderowing rate. Generally, the Bank uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement oé#ee lliability comprise the following:-

« fixed payments, including in-substance fixed paytségss any incentives receivable;

» variable lease payments that depend on an indexrate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable under a residus galarantee;

» the exercise price under a purchase option thaBdmé is reasonably certain to exercise; and

* penalties for early termination of a lease unlgsBank is reasonably certain not to terminate
early.

The Bank excludes variable lease payments thairded to future performance or usage of the
underlying asset from the lease liability. Instethése payments are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the performance or use occurs.

The Bank has elected not to recognise right-ofassets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less arsgédeaf low-value assets. The Bank recognises
the lease payments associated with these leas@s a@spense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.



Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M) 48

3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)

0)

(k)

Leases(continued)
Subsequent measurement
As a lessee

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciatgdg the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end otige¢ul life of the right-of-use asset or the end
of the lease term. The estimated useful lives gifitrof-use assets are determined on the same
basis as those of property and equipment. In adddithe right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted foratentemeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cadhgithe effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lemgagnts arising from a change in an index or
rate, if there is a revision of in-substance fixedse payments, or if there is a change in the
Bank’s estimate of the amount expected to be payaihdier a residual value guarantee, or if the
Bank changes its assessment of whether it will @sera purchase, extension or termination
option.

When the lease liability is remeasured, a corredimgnadjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profitoss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

The Bank has applied the Amendment to MFRSL#8ses - Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
whereby rent concessions received as a direct qoaeee of the Covid-19 pandemic are not
assessed as a lease modification if all of thewoilg conditions are met:

» the change in lease payments results in revisesidenation for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration édetse immediately preceding the change;

* any reduction in lease payments affects only paysneriginally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

» there is no substantive change to other terms anditions of the lease.

If the above conditions are met, rent concessionsraated as variable lease payments and impact
will be recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Intangible asset

Intangible asset represents admission fee and asumed at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisatfantangible asset is calculated to write-off
the cost of the intangible asset on a straightdiasis over the estimated useful life of 5 years.
Intangible asset is subject to impairment reviewhédre are events or changes in circumstances
which indicate that the carrying amount may notdmoverable.
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)
() Impairment

(i) Financial assets
The Bank assesses impairment by using a forwarkiigd‘expected credit loss” (“ECL”")
model. The ECL model applies to financial assetagueed at amortised cost, contract assets
and debt instruments measured at fair value thratigér comprehensive income.

Based on the ECL model policy established, an ass&# is performed at the end of each
reporting period, of whether a financial instrumerdredit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, by considering the charig the risk of default occurring over the
remaining life of the financial instrument.

The assessment of credit risk, as well as the astmof ECL, are required to be unbiased,
probability-weighted and should incorporate allitalde information which is relevant to the
assessment, including information about past eyentsent conditions and reasonable and
supportable forecasts of future events and econawmiwlitions at the reporting date. In
addition, the estimation of ECL should also take ccount the time value of money.

The three-stage approach which reflects the changeredit quality of the financial
instrument since initial recognition is as follows:

Stage 1: 12-month ECL - non-credit impaired

For exposures where there has not been a sigrifioarease in credit risk since initial
recognition that are not credit impaired upon orgion and with a day past due (“DPD”) of
equal to or less than 30 days, the ECL associaidd thve probability of default events
occurring within next 12 months will be recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - non-credit impaired

For exposures where there has been a significaotearse in credit risk since initial
recognition but that are non-credit impaired anthvei DPD between 31 days to 89 days, a
lifetime ECL will be recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - credit impaired

A financial asset is assessed as credit impairahuthmeets the Bank’s default criteria which
have detrimental impact on the estimated futuré fasvs of that asset and with a DPD equal
to or more than 90 days. For financial assetsdhatcredit impaired, a lifetime ECL will be
recognised.

An impairment loss in respect of financial assetasured at amortised cost is recognised in
profit or loss and the carrying amount of the agsetduced through the use of an allowance
account.

An impairment loss in respect of financial assetssured at FVOCI is recognised in profit or
loss and the allowance account is recognised ier @itbmprehensive income.

At the end of each reporting period, the Bank asses/hether financial assets at amortised
cost and FVOCI are credit impaired. A financialeass credit impaired when one or more

events that have a detrimental impact on the ewoifaiture cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)
() Impairment (continued)
(ii) Other assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s non-financiaess (except for deferred tax assets) are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period terdaghe whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then &élsset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets arepgd together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continusegthat are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets (known as cash-generatitii. u

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-gemgnatit is the greater of its value in use

and its fair value less costs of disposal. In assgsvalue in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value usimgeatax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money laadisks specific to the asset or cash-
generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carryingoamt of an asset or its related cash-
generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverabtriat.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or ldspairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to redihee carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or a grdugash-generating units) and then to reduce
the carrying amounts of the other assets in thé-gaserating unit (or a group of cash-
generating units) on@ro ratabasis.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods asessed at the end of each reporting period
for any indications that the loss has decreasedoolonger exists. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimatsl to determine the recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. Mypairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does nmezkthe carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisatib no impairment loss had been
recognised. Reversals of impairment losses ardtedetb profit or loss in the financial year
in which the reversals are recognised.

(m) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a pagéent, the Bank has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated Ibéfiaand it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle thégatbion.

Provisions are determined by discounting the exgue@uture cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the timeevaf money and the risk specific to the
liability. The unwinding of the discount is recoged as finance cost.
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)

(n)

(0)

(P)

(@)

Provision for commitments and contingencies

The Bank issues financial guarantees, letters ediciand loan commitments but the nominal
values of these instruments are not recorded instaeement of financial position. The same
assessment criteria are used by the Bank in madangnitments and conditional obligations for
off-balance sheet risks as it does for on-balasbest loan assets.

The measurement of credit loss for these irrevecafftbalance sheet assets is based on a three-
stage expected credit loss model as describedta 3(O(i).

Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations in respecsalaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave and sick leave are measured on an undisebimaisis and expensed as the related
service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expectede paid under short-term cash bonus if the
Bank has a present legal or constructive obligatmmay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligatammbe estimated reliably.

(i) Defined contribution plan

The Bank’s contributions to statutory pension furade charged to profit or loss in the
financial year to which they relate. Once the dbaotions have been paid, the Bank has no
further payment obligations.

Earnings per ordinary share
The Bank presents basic earnings per share (“EdR@&)for its ordinary shares.

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit osd attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Bank by the weighted average number of ordinaryeshautstanding during the period.

No diluted EPS is presented in these financiaksiahts as there are no dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

Fair value measurement

Fair value of an asset or a liability, except foae-based payment and lease transactions, is
determined as the price that would be receiveatticas asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participantghat measurement date. The measurement
assumes that the transaction to sell the assa@wosfér the liability takes place either in the
principal market or in the absence of a principatket, in the most advantageous market.

For non-financial asset, the fair value measurentgkes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by usingabsget in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use tlsetas its highest and best use.

The Bank recognises transfers between levels of/#ue hierarchy as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfers.
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4. Cash and short-term funds

2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
Cash and balances with banks and other finanattuations 87,802 58,165
Money at call and deposit placements maturing witiie month 648,542 686,344
736,344 744,509
Less: Allowance for credit loss (72) (20)
736,272 744,489
An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amandtthe corresponding allowance for credit loss is
as follows:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Gross carrying amount
At 1 January 2021 744,509 - 744,509
New assets originat 347,863 - - 347,863
Assets derecognised or repaid (356,028) (399,02
At 31 December 2021 736,344 - 736,344
At 1 January 2020 1,177,867 - 1,177,867
New assets originat 145,913 - - 145,913
Assets derecognised or repaid (579,271) (529,27
At 31 December 2020 744,509 - 744,509
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Allowance for credit loss
At 1 January 2021 20 - 20
New assets originat 95 - - 95
Assets derecognised or repaid (46) (46)
Foreign exchange adjustments 3 3
At 31 December 2021 72 - 72
At 1 January 2020 100 - 100
New assets originat 50 - - 50
Assets derecognised or repaid (141) (141)
Changes in model/risk parameter 12 12
Foreign exchange adjustments (1) Q)
At 31 December 2020 20 - 20
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5. Deposits and placements with banks and other famcial institutions

2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
Licensed Malaysian banks 145,809 129,834
Less: Allowance for credit loss - -
145,809 129,834
An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amandtthe corresponding allowance for credit loss is
as follows:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Gross carrying amount
At 1 January 2021 129,834 - 129,834
New assets originat 145,809 - 145,809
Assets derecognised or repaid (129,834) - 9,83%)
At 31 December 2021 145,809 - 145,809
At 1 January 2020 171,563 - 171,563
New assets originat 89,665 - 89,665
Assets derecognised or repaid (131,394) - 1,881
At 31 December 2020 129,834 - 129,834
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Allowance for credit loss
At 1 January/31 December 2021 - - -
At 1 January 2020 - - -
New assets originat 4 - - 4

Assets derecognised or repaid
Foreign exchange adjustments
At 31 December 2020
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6. Financial investments measured at fair value tlough other comprehensive income

(i) Bytype

Malaysian Government Securities

Malaysian Government Investment Issues
Malaysian Government Guaranteed Sukuk

Corporate bonds

(ii)

By maturity structure

Within one year
More than one year to three years
More than three years to five years

54
2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
200,111 195,849
229,637 2845,
30,276 30,771
5,061 71,010
465,085 542,881
2021 2020
RM'000 RM'000
35,337 116,289
429,748 217,716
- 208,876
465,085 542,881

(i) Movement of gross carrying amount and the albwance for credit loss to other

comprehensive income

Gross carrying amount

At 1 January 2021

New assets originated or purchased
Assets derecognised or repaid
Changes in fair value

At 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2020

New assets originated or purchased
Assets derecognised or repaid
Changes in fair value

At 31 December 2020

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
542,881 - - 542,881
72,554 - - 42,55
(135,904) - - (135,904)
(14,446) - - (14,446)
465,085 - - 465,085
594,788 - - 594,788
14,359 - - 94,35
(75,759) - - (75,759)
9,493 - - 9,493
542,881 - - 542,881
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6. Financial investments measured at fair value tlough other comprehensive incomécontinued)

(i) Movement of gross carrying amount and the albwance for credit loss to other
comprehensive incomécontinued)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000
Allowance for credit loss

At 1 January 20z 1,728 - - 1,728
Assets derecognised or ref (1,566) - - (1,566)
Changes due to change in credit (26) - - (26)
Changes iimodel/risk parameter (11) - - (11)
At 31 December 20: 125 - - 125
At 1 January 20z 1,542 - - 1,542
Assets derecognised or ref (282) - - (282)
Changes due to change in credit 80 - - 80
Changes in model/risk parame 388 - - 388
At 31 December 2020 1,728 - - 1,728

The carrying amounts of financial investments mesgat FVOCI are their respective fair values.
Accordingly, the recognition of allowance for creltiss does not affect the carrying amount of
those assets, but is reflected as a debit to pofiss and credit to other comprehensive income.

7. Financial investments measured at amortised cost

() By type
2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
Malaysian Government Investment Issues 32,039 32,12
Financial institutions’ securities 77,273 45,946
Corporate bonds 262,956 126,121
Other debt securities
- Cagamas bonds 80,287 20,000
452,555 224,194
Less: Allowance for credit loss (1,231) (515)
451,324 223,679
(iiy By maturity structure
2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
Within one year 147,996 50,642
More than one year to three years 304,559 173,552

452,555 224,194
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7. Financial investments measured at amortised co@tontinued)
(i) Movement of gross carrying amount and allowance focredit loss to profit or loss
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Gross carrying amount
At 1 January 2021 224,194 - - 224,194
New assets originated or purche 344,630 - - 344,630
Assets derecognised or repaid (116,269) - - (116,269)
At 31 December 2021 452,555 - - 452,555
At 1 January 2020 117,256 - - 117,256
New assets originated or purche 137,669 - - 137,669
Assets derecognised or repaid (30,731) - - (30,731)
At 31 December 2020 224,194 - - 224,194
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Allowance for credit loss
At 1 January 2021 515 - - 515
New assets originat 880 - - 880
Assets derecognised or repaid (390) - - (390)
Changes due to change in credit risk 286 - 286
Changes in model/risk parameter (60) - - (60)
At 31 December 2021 1,231 - - 1,231
At 1 January 2020 93 - - 93
New assets originat 382 - - 382
Assets derecognised or repaid (279) - - (279)
Changes due to change in credit risk 273 - 273
Changes in model/risk parameter 40 - 40
Foreign exchange adjustments 6 - 6
At 31 December 2020 515 - - 515
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8. Loans, advances and financing

() By type
2021 2020

RM’'000 RM’000
Overdrafts 21,687 32,380
Term loans
- Housing loans 112,281 99,943
- Syndicated term loans 450,378 554,715
- Other term loans 393,162 271,957
Bridging loans - 150,293
Bills receivable 354,313 192,672
Revolving credits 828,705 1,005,863
Bankers’ acceptances 117,880 122,140
Staff loans 1,641 1,774
Credit card loans 1,845 1,408
Gross loans, advances and financing 2,281,892 2,433,145
Less: Allowance for credit loss
- Stage 1 (12-month ECL) (24,251) (35,616)
- Stage 2 (Lifetime ECL - non-credit impaired) @) (17,070)
- Stage 3 (Lifetime ECL - credit impaired) (1,212)  (1,133)

(36,684) (53,819)
Net loans, advances and financ 2,245,208 2,379,326

(i) By type of customer
2021 2020

RM’'000 RM’000
Domestic banking institutions 19,201 30,402
Domestic non-bank financial institutions
- Others 60,036 -
Domestic business enterprises
- Small medium enterprises 97,297 93,461
- Others 1,743,979 1,728,271
Individuals 48,590 48,615
Foreign entities 312,789 532,396

2,281,892 2,433,145

(iii) By interest rate sensitivity

2021 2020
RM’'000 RM’000
Fixed rate loan 3,485 3,182
Variable rate
- Base rate/base lending rate plus 91,674 88,442
- Cost plus 2,101,899 2,244,870
- Other variable rates 84,834 96,651

2,281,892 2,433,145
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8. Loans, advances and financin¢continued)

(iv) By sector

v)

(vi)

Primary agriculture

Manufacturing

Electricity, gas and water

Constructiol

Real estate

Wholesale & retail trade and restaurants & hotels
Transport, storage and communication

Finance, insurance and business services
Education, health and others

Household

By purpose

Purchase of properties

- Non-residential

- Residential
Construction

Credit card

Personal use

Mergers and acquisitions
Working capital

Other purpose

By geographical distribution

Within Malaysia
Outside Malaysia

58
2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
30,850 30,111
269,056 276,409
57,307 64,615
226,158 133,218
235,896 417,636
96,255 406,264
199,031 105,37
639,845 8,088
199,081 413,899
128,413 117,536
2,281,892 2,433,145
2021 2020
RM’'000 RM’000
181,956 128,374
113,625 101,352
63,273 156,650
1,845 1,408
1,048 1,110
- 150,293
1,724,325 1,595,483
195,820 298,475
2,281,892 2,433,145
2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
1,991,461 1,968,584
290,431 464,561
2,281,892 2,433,145

Concentration by location for loans, advances dnenting is based on the geographical

location where the credit risk resides.

(vii) By residual contractual maturity

Maturity within one year

More than one year to three years
More than three years to five years
More than five years

2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
1,444,180 1,805,857
373,711 353,365
107,697 62,269
356,304 211,654
2,281,892 2,433,145
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8. Loans,

advances and financinfcontinued)

(viii) Impaired loans, advances and financing

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Movement in impaired loans, advances and financing

At 1 January

Impaired during the financial year

Reclassified as performing during the financialryea
Exchange differences

At 31 December

As % of gross loans, advances and financing

By sector

Wholesale & retail trade and restaurants & hotels
Household

By purpose

Working capital
Credit card

By geographical distribution

Within Malaysia
Outside Malaysia

59
2021 2020
RM'000  RM'000
1,133 1,117
93 74
(54) (42)
40 (16)
1,212 1,133
0.05% 0.05%
2021 2020
RM'000  RM'000
124 1,085
87 48
1,212 1,133
2021 2020
RM'000  RM'000
1,125 1,085
87 48
1,212 1,133
2021 2020
RM'000  RM'000
87 48
1,125 1,085
1,212 1,133

Concentration by location for impaired loans, adbemn and
geographical location where the credit risk resides

financing is based on the
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8. Loans, advances and financin¢continued)

(ix) Movements in gross loans, advances and finamgj

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
At 1 January 2021 1,837,621 594,391 1,133 2,433,145
New assets originated 1,251,027 121,249 7 1,372,283
Assets derecognised or repaid (1,158,384) (365,191) (1) (1,523,576)
Transfer to Stage 1 112,310 (112,257) (53) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (126,038) 126,038 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 - (86) 86 -
Foreign exchange adjustments - - 40 40
At 31 December 2021 1,916,536 364,144 1,212 2,221,8
At 1 January 2020 2,171,675 784,428 1,117 5220
New assets originat 843,155 206,144 2 1,049,301
Assets derecognised or repaid (1,342,051) (231,309) - (1,573,360)
Transfer to Stage 1 165,636 (165,594) (42) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (794) 794 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 - (72) 72 -
Foreign exchange adjustments - - (16) (16)
At 31 December 2020 1,837,621 594,391 1,133 2,433,1

(x) Movements in allowance for credit loss on loans, adnces and financing

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
At 1 January 2021 35,616 17,070 1,133 53,819
New assets originat 12,332 3,038 7 15,377
Assets derecognised or repaid (13,300) (8,145) () (21,446)
Transfer to Stage 1 2,862 (2,809) (53) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (4,002) 4,002 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 - (2) 2 -
Changes due to change in credit risk (7,434) (1,459) 84 (8,809)
Changes in model/risk parameter (1,997) (474) - (2,471)
Foreign exchange adjustments 174 - 40 214
At 31 December 2021 24,251 11,221 1,212 36,684
At 1 January 2020 27,460 14,104 1,117 42,681
New assets originat 9,170 4,595 2 13,767
Assets derecognised or repaid (10,842) (4,515) - (15,357)
Transfer to Stage 1 2,821 (2,779) (42) -
Transfer to Stage 2 3) 3 - -
Changes due to change in credit risk 4,154 4,412 72 8,638
Changes in model/risk parameter 2,973 1,250 - 4,223
Foreign exchange adjustments (117) - (16) (133)

At 31 December 2020 35,616 17,070 1,133 53,819
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9. Derivative financial assets/liabilities

2021
Contract/
Nominal value Assets  Liabilities
RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000
Foreign exchange contracts

- Currency forwards and spots 233,217 1,766 -
- Currency swaps 159,847 1,012 273
Interest rate contracts
- Cross currency interest rate swaps 208,837 301 -
- Interest rate swaps 200,000 115 115
Total recognised derivative assets/liabilities @82) 801,901 3,194 388
2020
Contract/
Nominal value Assets  Liabilities

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Foreign exchange contracts

- Currency forwards and spots 158,625 1,565 362
- Currency swaps 285,185 748 2,828
Total recognised derivative assets/liabilities @82) 443,810 2,313 3,190

10. Other assets

2021 2020

RM’000 RM’000
Interest receivable 11,515 11,714
Deposits 1,569 1,817
Other receivables and prepayments 1,936 3,018

Collateral pledged for derivative transactions P,59 -
17,610 16,549

11. Statutory deposits with Bank Negara Malaysia

The non-interest bearing statutory deposits arataiaied with Bank Negara Malaysia in compliance
with Section 26(2)(c) and Section 26(3) of the CanBank of Malaysia Act, 2009 to satisfy the
Statutory Reserve Requirement, the amount of wisictetermined based on a set percentage of total
eligible liabilities.
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12. Property and equipment

Office
equipment, Improvement
Electronic fixtures and Computer on leased Assets under
equipment fittings software assets construction Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Cosl
At 1 January 20z 5,357 3,960 2,292 11,704 132 23,445
Additions 673 2 70 191 1,818 2,754
Transfers 5 275 31 1,511 (1,822) -
Written off (119) (498) - (1,288) - (1,905)
At 31 December 2021 5,916 3,739 2,393 12,118 128 24,294
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2021 4,300 2,976 829 11,587 - 19,692
Charge during the year 643 429 212 107 - 1,391
Written off (119) (494) - (1,287) - (1,900)
At 31 December 2021 4,824 2,911 1,041 10,407 - 19,183

Net carrying amount
At 1 January 2C1 1,057 984 1,463 117 132 3,753

At 31 Decembe 2021 1,092 828 1,352 1,711 128 5,111
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12. Property and equipment(continued)

Cosi

At 1 January 20z
Additions
Transfers
Written off

At 31 December 2020
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2020

Charge during the year
Written off

At 31 December 2020

Net carrying amount
At 1 January 20z

At 31 December 20:

63

Office
equipment, Improvement
Electronic  fixtures and Computer on leased Assets under

equipment fittings software assets construction Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
5,577 3,799 2,260 11,664 72 23,372
426 287 17 120 75 925

- - 15 - (15) -
(646) (126) - (80) - (852)
5,357 3,960 2,292 11,704 132 23,445
4,159 2,547 609 9,861 - 17,176
787 545 220 1,806 - 3,358
(646) (116) - (80) - (842)
4,300 2,976 829 11,587 - 19,692
1,418 1,252 1,651 1,803 72 6,196
1,057 984 1,463 117 132 3,753




Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M) 64

13. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

Right-of-use assets

Building

premises Motor vehicles Equipment Other leases Tota

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Cosl
At 1 January 2(C1 11,591 1,553 229 203 13,576
Additions 1,990 - 136 - 2,126
Derecognition (2,004) - - - (2,004)
At 31 December 2021 11,577 1,553 365 203 13,698
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2021 2,449 133 90 104 2,776
Charge during the year 4,082 533 78 70 4,763
Derecognition (2,004) - - - (2,004)
At 31 December 2021 4,527 666 168 174 5,535
Net carrying amount
At 1 January 2(C1 9,142 1,420 139 99 10,800
At 31 December 2021 7,050 887 197 29 8,163




Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M) 65

13. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilitiésontinued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Building

premises Motor vehicles Equipment Other leases Tota

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Cosl
At 1 January 20z 12,921 854 229 203 14,207
Additions 8,459 1,553 - 42 10,054
Derecognition (9,789) (854) - (42) (10,685)
At 31 December 2020 11,591 1,553 229 203 13,576
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2020 3,725 476 35 35 4,271
Charge during the year 3,819 511 55 96 4,481
Derecognition (5,095) (854) - (27) (5,976)
At 31 December 2020 2,449 133 90 104 2,776
Net carrying amount
At 1 January 20z 9,196 378 194 168 9,936

At 31 December 2020 9,142 1,420 139 99 10,800
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13. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilitiésontinued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

The Bank leases a number of branch and office gesniThe leases typically run for a period of & to
years, with an option to renew the leases afteir thepiry date. For some leases, rentals are
renegotiated every three years in accordance hatharket then prevailing.

The Bank also leases a few motor vehicles, equipaeth other assets. The leases typically run for a
period of 3 to 5 years, with an option to renewldases after their expiry date.

For certain equipment that are of low value buhwvgibntract terms of up to five years, the Bank has
classified these leases as leases of low-valuesitEBor other assets that are with contract termgof

to one year, the Bank has classified these leasehat-term leases. The Bank has elected not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabifitiethese leases.

Significant judgements and assumptions in relatioleases

The Bank assesses at lease commencement by apsiyimificant judgement whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise the extension options. The Ramisiders all facts and circumstances includigg it
past practice and any cost that will be incurredhange the asset if an option to extend is nartak
to help it determines the lease term.

The Bank also applied judgement and assumptioeti@rmining the incremental borrowing rate of
the respective leases. The Bank first determinesctbsest available borrowing rate before using
significant judgement to determine the adjustmeatgiired to reflect the term, security, value or
economic environment of the respective leases.

Lease liabilities

2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000

Lease liabilities 8,021 10,549

The maturity profile of the Bank’s lease liabilgi®ased on undiscounted contractual payments is as
follows:

2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000

Less than 1 month 386 396
Between 1 to 3 months 771 791
Between 3 months to 1 year 3,228 3,158
Between 1 to 5 years 3,779 6,467

8,164 10,812
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14. Intangible asset

Admission Fee

2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
Cost

At 1 January/31 December 2,600 2,600

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January/31 December 2,600 2,600

Carrying amounts
At 1 January/31 December - -

15. Deferred tax assets

2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
At 1 January 11,158 11,905
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 28) (4,525) 1,576
Recognised in equity 3,852 (2,323)
At 31 December 10,485 11,158

The components and movements of deferred tax assdttiabilities during the financial year are as
follows:-

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

At Recognised Recognised At
1 January in profit or in equity 31 December
2021 loss 2021
(Note 28)
RM'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000
Property and equipment 506 (531) - (25)
Right-of-use assets (2,559) 615 - (1,944)
Fair value reserve (5,917) - 3,852 (2,065)
Allowance for credit loss 10,524 (3,217) - 7,307
Provisions 6,104 (802) - 5,302
Lease liabilities 2,500 (590) 1,910

11,158 (4,525) 3,852 10,485
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15. Deferred tax assetécontinued)

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

At  Recognised Recognised At
1 January in profit or in equity 31 December
2020 loss 2020
(Note 28)
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Property and equipment 154 352 - 506
Right-of-use assets - (2,559) - (2,559)
Fair value reserve (3,594) - (2,323) (5,917)
Allowance for credit loss 8,105 2,419 - 10,524
Provisions 7,240 (1,136) - 6,104
Lease liabilities - 2,500 - 2,500
11,905 1,576 (2,323) 11,158
16. Deposits from customers
(i) By type of deposits
2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
Demand deposits 560,914 756,639
Fixed deposits 1,022,251 953,084
Savings deposits 160,078 161,608
Money market deposits 39,886 102,057
Others 140,764 3,026

1,923,893 1,976,414

(ii) By type of customers

2021 2020

RM’'000 RM’000
Business enterprises 936,864 1,091,242
Individuals 325,906 334,206
Foreign entities 660,847 550,690
Others 276 276

1,923,893 1,976,414

(iii) By maturity structure of term deposits

2021 2020
RM’'000 RM’000
Due within six months 727,910 827,006
More than six months to one year 333,003 228,135
More than one year to three years 1,224

1,062,137 1,055,141
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Deposits and placements of banks and other finaial institutions
2021 2020
RM’'000 RM’000
Licensed Malaysian banks 20,318 19,525
Licensed investment banks 50,087 50,151
Licensed Islamic banks 13,854 15,365
Other financial institutions 113,922 119,020
Foreign banks 690,313 635,990
888,494 840,051
Other liabilities
2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
Interest payable 10,483 10,985
Other payables and accruals 29,943 33,614
40,426 44,599
Provision for commitments and contingencies
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
At 1 January 2021 4,236 1,217 - 5,453
New commitments originated 1,028 146 - 1,174
Commitments derecognised (2,329) (666) - (2,995)
Transfer to Stage 1 662 (662) - -
Transfer to Stage 2 77 77 - -
Changes due to change in credit risk (947) 271 - (676)
Changes in model/risk parameter (195) (15) - (210)
At 31 December 2021 2,378 368 - 2,746
At 1 January 2020 4,043 2,961 - 7,004
New commitmentoriginated 1,799 637 - 2,436
Commitments derecognised (2,133) (2,707) - (4,840)
Transfer to Stage 1 19 (19) - -
Transfer to Stage 2 (369) 369 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 - 3) 3 -
Changes due to change in credit risk 568 (167) 3) 398
Changes in model/risk parameter 309 146 455
At 31 December 2020 4,236 1,217 - 5,453
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20.

21.

22.

Provision for taxation

Provision for taxation in 2021 includes tax payaiyethe Bank’s branch, Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad, Labuan InternaldBranch, where the Branch is subject to tax at
3% of the chargeable profit pursuant to Sectior) 4€ithe Labuan Business Activity Tax Act, 1990

for the year of assessment 2022.

Share capital

Number of

ordinary shares Amount

2021 2020 2021 2020

'000 '000 RM’000 RM’000
Ordinary shares with no par value
Issued and fully paid up
At 1 January/31 December 832,609 832,609 832,609 2,689
Reserves

(a) Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve captures foreign exchange currency translation
differences in respect of Labuan branch operations.

(b) Fair value reserve
Fair value reserve captures the fair value adjustran financial investments (debt instruments)
which are measured at fair value through other cehgmsive income, its corresponding effect on
deferred tax and allowance for credit loss ariginginancial investments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. The resermrisdistributable and cumulative fair value
adjustments will be reversed to profit or loss ud@posal of the assets.

(c) Regulatory reserve
The regulatory reserve is maintained by the Bankraadditional credit risk absorbant in excess
of the requirement of accounting standards. Theervesis maintained in line with the
requirements of Bank Negara Malaysia.

(d) Retained earnings

The retained earnings are distributable as tax-pkeididends to shareholders.
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23. Net Interest income

Interest income

Loans, advances and financing

Money at call and deposits and placements witmfired institutions

Financial investments measured at fair value thnaater
comprehensive income

Financial investments measured at amortised cost

Interest expense

Deposits and placements of banks and other finginsigtutions
Deposits from customers

Others

Net interest income

The amounts reported above include interest incamg expense, calculated using the effective

interest rate method that relates to the following:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Financial assets measured at fair value througér oth
comprehensive income

Financial assets not at fair value through prafibss

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

71
2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000

76,214 111,414
7,846 9,483
18,817 22,691

7669, 6,922
112,643 150,510
(10,818) (17,344)
(21,160) (30,396)
- (1)
(31,978) (47,741)
80,665 102,769

2021
RM’000

2020

RM’000

93,826127,819

18,817 22,691
112,643 150,510
1,938) (47,741)
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24. Net Non Interest income

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Net fee income

Fee income:

- Commission

- Service charges and fees

- Loan processing fees

- Syndication fees

- Guarantee fees

- Commitment fees

- Other loan related fee income
- Other fee income

Fee expense:

- Brokerage fees

- Other fee expense
Net fee incom

Net trading income

Net gains from dealing in foreign excha

Net (losses)/gains arising from derivative trading

Net unrealised revaluaticgains/(losses) in foreign exchange
Net unrealisegains/(losses) arising from derivative trading

Net investment income

Net gains on redemption on financial investmenB\&DCl

Net gains on redemption on financinvestments at amortised cost
Net gains ordisposal on financial investments at amortised cost

Other income

Other operating income

Total net non-interest income

72
2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
96 81
3,494 2,773
651 544
2,254 1,857
5,810 2,873
683 943
41 98
37 299
13,066 9,468
(158) (124
(557) (99
(715) (223)
12,351 9,245
2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
27,814 4,368
6Bp 17,024
409  (241)
3,68 (252)
22,241 20,899
2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
459 -
683 -
413 -
1,555 -
2021 2020

RM’000 RM’000

174 442

36,321 30,586
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25. Other operating expenses

2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
Personnel costs:

- Salaries, allowance and bonuses (excluding Qirsctemuneration) 41,945 40,429
- Directors’ remuneration (Note 30(c)) 2,331 2,142
- Pension fund contributions 4,492 4,689
- Other staff costs 6,166 4,939
Promotion and marketing related expenses:

- Advertising and promotion 202 280
- Others 82 206
Establishment costs:

- Depreciation of property and equipment 1,391 3,358
- Depreciation of right-of-use assets 4,763 4,481
- Interest expense on lease liabilities 178 263
- Expenses relating to short-term leases 2 5
- Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets 2 35
- Property and equipment written off 5 10
- Others 2,621 2,325

Administrative expenses:
- Auditors’ remuneration

* statutory audit fees 238 270

« audit related services 12 13

- Professional fees 505 707
- Licence fee 338 331
- Membership fee 421 429
- Others 5,559 5,865
71,253 70,777

26. (Write-back of)/Allowance for impairment on loans, advances and financing

2021 2020
RM’'000 RM’000
(Write-back of)/Allowance for credit loss

- Loans, advances and financing (17,349) 11,271
- Provision for commitments and contingencies (2)70 (1,551)
(20,056 9,720

27. (Write-back of)/Allowance for impairment on other financial assets

2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
(Write-back of)/Allowance for credit loss

- Cash and short-term funds 49 (79)
- Financial investments measured at fair valueuginoother

comprehensive income (1,603) 186
- Financial investments measured at amortised cost 716 416

(838) 523
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28. Tax expense

2021 2020
RM'000 RM'000
Current tax expense

- Current financial year 14,028 13,497
- Under/(Over)provision in prior years 2,195 (178)
Total current tax recognised in profit or loss 032 13,319

Deferred taxation

- Origination and reversal of temporary differences 1,663 (1,576)
- Underprovision in prior years 2,862 -
Total deferred tax recognised in profit or loss @ND5) 4,525 (1,576)
20,748 11,743
2021 2020

RM’'000 RM’'000
Reconciliation of tax expense

Profit before taxation 66,627 52,335
Income tax calculated using Malaysian tax rate4862 15,991 12,560
Tax effect of:

Non-deductible expenses 337 841

Effect of tax rate in a different jurisdiction 3b) (1,480)
Under/(Over)provision of income tax expense in ppyiears 2,195 (178)
Underprovision of deferred taxation in prior years 2,862 -
Tax expense 20,748 11,743

The Inland Revenue Board of Malaysia (“IRB”) comroed in June 2020 a desk audit of the Bank's
taxation affairs for the Years of Assessment 201&Q@18. The desk audit was stalled due to the
COVID-19 pandemic and the IRB subsequently inclutthedY ear of Assessment 2019 in the scope of
the desk audit in 2021. The Bank has resolved atitbd the desk audit with the IRB by paying an

additional tax of RM2.43 million in December 202dvering the Years of Assessment 2016 to 2019.
The additional tax has been included in the undetpon of tax expense in prior years of RM2.20

million as disclosed above.

29. Basic earnings per ordinary share
The basic earnings per ordinary share has beenlatd based on the profit attributable to equity

holder of the Bank of RM45,879,000 (2020: RM40,58P) and weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year of @B2000 (2020: 832,609,000).
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30. Significant related party transactions and balaces

(a) The significant transactions of the Bank with itdding company and other related entities are as

follows:-
2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Holding Related Holding Related
company companies company companies
Income

Interest incom
- Deposits and placements with banks
and other financial institutions 1,013 109 1,142 136

Expenses
Interest expen:
- Deposits and placements of banks

and other financial institutions (6,878) (192) (11,194) -
Other operating expenses
- Other charges (29) (7 (20) -
- Software licence fee (54) - (55) -

(b) The significant outstanding balances of the Bartk Wt$ holding company and other related
entities are as follows:-

2021 2020
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000
Holding Related Holding Related
company companies company companies
Amount due from
- Cash and short-term funds 91,242 43,298 27,392 1,712
- Other assets - 15 1 -

Amount due to
- Deposits and placements of ba

and other financial institutions (690,152) - (635,830) -
- Other liabilities (1,100) - (1,142) -
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30. Significant related party transactions and balaces(continued)

All transactions of the Bank with its related pastare made in the ordinary course of businessmand
substantially the same terms, including interegtsrawith third parties.

There is no amount outstanding from key managepensbnnel as at year end.
(c) Key management personnel compensation

The remuneration of key management personnel, lbénghembers of the Board of Directors
of the Bank, during the financial year are showiolwe

2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
Executive Director and CEO

Mr Wang Qian

- Salaries 1,046 959
- Bonus 545 526
- Other allowances 374 286
1,965 1,771

Non-Executive Directors’ fees
Mr Chin Chee Kon 123 124
Mr Ng Lip Yon 122 124
Ms Sum Leng Kuai 121 123
366 371
2,331 2,142
Note 25 Note 25

31. Credit exposures to connected parties

The credit exposures of the Bank to connectedgsaréis defined by BNM's “Guidelines on Credit
Transactions and Exposures with Connected Padiesas follows:-

2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000

Aggregate value of outstanding credit exposuredtmected parties 159,057 202,711

As a percentage of total credit exposures 3.43% 4.31%

Percentage of outstanding credit exposures to coeth@arties which
are non-performing or in default 0% 0%
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32. Commitments and contingencies
In the ordinary course of business, the Bank make®us commitments and incurs certain contingent
liabilities with legal recourse to customers. Notenal losses are anticipated as a result of these
transactions.

The commitments and contingencies comprise theviatg:-

2021
Positive
value of Credit Risk-
Principal derivative  equivalent weighted
amount  contracts”® amount* assets*
RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Credit-related exposures
Transaction-related contingent items 489,683 - 244,841 120,015
Short-term self-liquidating tradeslated
contingencies 202,929 - 40,586 29,384
Other commitments, such as formal
standby facilities and credit lines, with
an original maturity of:
- Exceeding one year 56,359 - 28,179 26,446
- Not exceeding one year 701,349 - 140,270 137,968
Unutilised credit card lines 39,971 - 7,994 5,996
Derivative financial contracts
Foreign exchange related contracts:
- Less than one year 393,064 2,778 7,039 4,107
Interest rate related contracts
- One year to five years 408,837 416 27,211 328,
Total 2,292,192 3,194 496,120 344,239

Note 9

O The foreign exchange related contracts are offdzalasheet derivative financial instruments
whose values change in response to changes irspmiaates (such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates) of the underlying instruments. Thderlying principal amounts of these derivative
financial instruments and their corresponding grpssitive fair values (derivative financial
assets) as at respective reporting dates are as stimve.

O The credit equivalent and risk-weighted amountscaraputed using credit conversion factors and
risk-weighting rules as per BNM guidelines. Theditreonversion factors and risk weighting
rules are based on guidelines of the revised Qapdaquacy Framework on the Standardised
Approach.
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32. Commitments and contingencie&ontinued)

2020
Positive
value of Credit Risk-
Principal derivative  equivalent weighted
amount  contracts” amount* assets*

RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000
Credit-related exposures

Direct credit substitutes 92,242 - 92,242 40,140
Transaction-related contingent items 325,894 - 9462, 111,875
Short-term self-liquidating trade-related

contingencies 162,483 - 32,496 20,765

Other commitments, such as formal
standby facilities and credit lines, with
an original maturity of:

- Exceeding one year 83,240 - 41,620 39,723
- Not exceeding one year 1,108,773 - 221,755 71,3
Unutilised credit card lines 41,211 - 8,242 6,182

Derivative financial contracts
Foreign exchange related contracts:

- Less than one year 443,810 2,313 6,542 2,461
Total 2,257,653 2,313 565,844 440,522

Note 9

0 The foreign exchange related contracts are offdzalasheet derivative financial instruments
whose values change in response to changes irspicetes (such as foreign exchange rates
and interest rates) of the underlying instrumeiit®e underlying principal amounts of these
derivative financial instruments and their corregtiog gross positive fair values (derivative
financial assets) as at respective reporting datess shown above.

0 The credit equivalent and risk-weighted amountscamputed using credit conversion factors
and risk-weighting rules as per BNM guidelines. Téredit conversion factors and risk
weighting rules are based on guidelines of thesel/iCapital Adequacy Framework on the
Standardised Approach.
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33.

Capital adequacy

The total risk-weighted assets of the Bank are etethbbased on the following approaches:-

(i)  Standardised Approach for Credit risk;
(i)  Standardised Approach for Market risk;
(i)  Basic Indicator Approach for Operational risk

The capital adequacy ratios of the Bank are andlgsdollows:-

Common Equity Tier 1 (“CET1") Capital/Tier 1 Capita |
Paid-up share capital

Retained earnings

Regulatory reserve

Foreign currency translation reserve

Unrealised gains on financial investments measateedvOCI

Less: Regulatory adjustments applied in calculatibBET1 Capital
- Deferred tax assets
- 55% cumulative gains of financial investments meadat
FVOCI
- Regulatory reserve attributable to loans, advanods
financing

Total CET1 Capital/Tier 1 Capital

Tier 2 Capital
Allowance for credit loss
Regulatory reserve

Total Tier 2 Capital
Total Capital
CET1 capital ratio

Tier 1 capital ratio
Total capital ratio

79
2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
832,609 832,609
390,870 344,991
17,644 17,644
1,186 (127)
6,416 17,010
1,248,725 1,212,127
(10,485) (11,158)
(3,529) (9,358)
(17,644) (17,644)
(31,658) (38,158)

1,217,067 1,173,969

17,612 16,386
17,644 17,644
35,256 34,030
1,252,323 1,207,999
39.521% 38.629%
39.521% 38.629%
40.665% 39.749%

Breakdown of gross risk-weighted assets (“RWA"}hia various categories of risk-weights:-

2021 2020

Risk- Risk-

weighted weighted

Exposures Assets  Exposures Assets

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Total RWA for credit risk 4,632,127 2,820,491 4,699,942 2,741,626
Total RWA for market risk - 10,409 - 8,266
Total RWA for operational risk - 248,676 - 289,193
4,632,127 3,079,576 4,699,942 3,039,085
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34. Financial Instruments
34.1 Categories of financial instruments

The table below provides an analysis of financmgtiuments at the end of the reporting period
categorised as follows:-

(a) Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")
(b) Amortised Cost (“AC")
(c) Fair value through other comprehensive inc¢iiRg OCI”)

Carrying
Amount AC FVTPL FVOCI
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000

2021
Financial assets
Cash and short-term funds 736,272 736,272 - -
Deposits and placements with banks

and other financial institutions 145,809 145,809 - -
Financial investments measured at

FVOCI 465,085 - - 465,085
Financial investments measured at

amortised cost 451,324 451,324 - -
Loans, advances and financing 2,245,208 2,245,208 - -
Derivative financial assets 3,194 - 3,194 -
Other assets * 16,387 16,387 - -
Statutory deposits with

Bank Negara Malaysia 18,806 18,806 - -
Total financial assets 4,082,085 3,613,806 3,194 465,085
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 1,923,893 1,923,893 - -
Deposits and placements of banks and

other financial institutions 888,494 888,494 - -
Derivative financial liabilities 388 - 388 -
Other liabilities 40,426 40,426 - -
Provision for commitments and

contingencies 2,746 2,746 - -

Total financial liabilities 2,855,947 2,855,559 388 -
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)

34.1 Categories of financial instrumentgcontinued)

Carrying
Amount AC FVTPL FVOCI
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000
2020
Financial assets
Cash and short-term funds 744,489 744,489 - -
Deposits and placements with
banks and other financial
institutions 129,834 129,834 - -
Financial investments measured at
FVOCI 542,881 - - 542,881
Financial investments measured at
amortised cost 223,679 223,679 - -
Loans, advances and financing 2,379,326 2,379,326 - -
Derivative financial assets 2,313 - 2,313 -
Other assets * 15,215 15,215 - -
Statutory deposits with
Bank Negara Malaysia 20,402 20,402 - -
Total financial assets 4,058,139 3,512,945 2,313 542,881
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 1,976,414 1,976,414 -
Deposits and placements of
banks and other financial
institutions 840,051 840,051 - -
Derivative financial liabilities 3,190 - 3,190 -
Other liabilities 44 /599 44,599 - -
Provision for commitments and
contingencies 5,453 5,453 - -
Total financial liabilities 2,869,707 2,866,517 3,190 -

* Excluded those balances not within the scope BR®89,Financial Instruments
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)

34.2 Net gains and losses arising from financial struments

2021 2020

RM’000 RM’000
Net gains/(losses) arising

Fair value through profit or loss 22,241 20,899
Financial investments at fair value through ott@nprehensive

income:
- interest income from financial investments at falue through other

comprehensive income 19,943 23,482
- amortisation of premium recognised in profit osd (1,126) (791)
- recognised in other comprehensive income (12,197) 7,356

Financial investments at amortised cost

- interest income from financial investments at gimed cost 12,654 7,191

- amortisation of premium recognised in profit osd (2,888) (269)
Other financial assets at amortised cost 84,060 120,897
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (31,978) (47,741)
Netgains/(losses) on impairment on financial instrutsen

- financial assets at amortised cost 16,584 (11,608

- financial assets at fair value through other cahpnsive income 1,603 (186

- provision for commitments and contingencies 2,707 1,551

20,894 (10,243)
111,603 120,781
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)

34.3 Fair value information

Recognised financial instruments

The methods and assumptions used in estimatingathevalues of financial instruments are as
follows:-

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Cash and short-term funds/Deposits and placeme with banks and other financial
institutions

For cash and short-term funds and deposits andemplaats with banks and other financial
institutions including interest-earning deposite tarrying amounts are a reasonable estimate of
the fair values because of their short-term nafless than one year) and limited credit risk.

Financial investments
Fair values of investment securities are estimbagsdd on broker/dealer price quotation.
Loans, advances and financing

The fair values of fixed rate loans with remainmgturity of less than one year and variable rate
loans are estimated to approximate their carryialges. For fixed rate loans with maturity of
more than one year, the fair values are estimatesbd on expected future cash flows of
contractual instalment payments and discountedreagling market rates at the respective
reporting dates offered for similar loans. In redps impaired loans, the fair values are deemed
to approximate the carrying values, net of indigldaissessment impairment allowance.

Deposits from customers

The fair values of demand deposits and saving dspasturing within a short period of time
are equal to the amounts payable on demand. Hagsaf fixed deposits maturing within a year
are estimated to approximate their carrying amourds deposits with maturity exceeding one
year, the fair values are estimated using discaungsh flows based on market rates at the
respective reporting dates for similar products ieuadiurity.

(e) Deposits and placements of banks and othenéincial institutions

The fair values of non-interest bearing deposits eqqual to amounts payable on demand. For
deposits with maturity exceeding one year, faiugalare estimated by discounting the estimated
future cash flows based on market rates at theectisp reporting dates for deposits with similar
maturity.
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)

34.3 Fair value information (continued)
Recognised financial instrumentgcontinued)
Valuation of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and short-term fusiasst-term receivables and payables reasonablyxzippate their fair values due to the relativelyrsiierm
nature of these instruments.

The table below analyses other financial instrugigatr values and their carrying amounts.

Fair value of financial instruments carried Fair value of financial instruments not
at fair value carried at fair value Total fair | Carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Levd Total value | amount

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM’000 RM000 RM'000

2021
Financial assets
Deposit and placements with banks

and other financial institutions - - - - - - 14580 145,809 145,809 145,809
Financial investments measured at
FVOCI - 465,085 - 465,085 - - - - 465,085 465,085
Financial investments measured at
amortised cost - - - - - 451,417 - 451,417 451,41451,324
Loans, advances and financing - - - - - - 2,244, 73244,780 2,244,780 2,245,208
Derivative financial assets - 3,194 - 3,194 - - - - 3,194 3,194
- 468,279 - 468,279 - 451,417 2,390,589 2,842,006 3,310,285 3,310,620

Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers - - - - -

Deposits and placements of banks
other financial institutions - - - - - - 888,494 &894 888,494 888,494

Derivative financial liabilities - 388 - 388 - - - - 388 388
- 388 - 388 - - 2,812,387 2,812,387 2,812,775 28R

- 1,923,893 1,923 1,923,893 1,923,893
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)
34.3 Fair value information (continued)
Recognised financial instrumentgcontinued)

Valuation of financial instruments (continued)

85

Fair value of financial instruments carried Fair value of financial instruments not
at fair value carried at fair value Total fair | Carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Levd Total value | amount
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM000 RMO000 RM’'000 RM000 RM’000
2020
Financial assets
Deposit and placements with banks
and other financial institutions - - - - - - 129483 129,834 129,834 129,834
Financial investments measured at
FVOCI - 542,881 - 542,881 - - - - 542,881 542,881
Financial investments measured at
amortised cost - - - - - 197,004 30,485 227,489 439 223,679
Loans, advances and financing - - - - - - 2,378,88378,858 2,378,858 2,379,326
Derivative financial assets - 2,313 - 2,313 - - - - 2,313 2,313
- 545,194 - 545,194 - 197,004 2,539,177 2,736,181 3,281,375 3,278,033
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers - - - - - - 1,976,414 1,976 1,976,414 1,976,414
Deposits and placements of banks
other financial institutions - - - - - - 840,051 @@B@51 840,051 840,051
Derivative financial liabilities - 3,190 - 3,190 - - - - 3,190 3,190
- 3,190 - 3,190 - - 2,816,465 2,816,465 2,819,65812655




Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M) 86

34.

34.3

Financial Instruments(continued)
Fair value information (continued)
Recognised financial instrumentgcontinued)
Valuation of financial instruments (continued)

The Bank measures fair values using the followaigalue hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements:-

* Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in aivaanharket for identical financial assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the mesamant date.

< Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observaipets, either directly (as prices) or indirectly
(derived from prices). This category includes imstents valued using: quoted prices for
identical or similar instruments; quoted pricesiflentical or similar instruments in markets that
are considered less than active; or other valua¢ionniques where all significant inputs are
directly observable from market data.

< Level 3: Valuation techniques of financial assetd Babilities using significant unobservable
inputs. This category includes all instruments ehee valuation technique includes inputs not
based on observable data and the unobservable ihpue a significant effect on instrument’s
valuation. This category includes instruments #ratvalued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments where significant unobservable adjustsner assumptions are required to reflect
differences between the instruments.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liibg that are traded in active markets are based
quoted market prices or dealer price quotationsilalility of observable market prices and model
inputs reduces the need for management judgemdntstimation and also reduces the uncertainty
associated with determination of fair values. Aafility of observable market prices and inputs
varies depending on the products and markets apiebige to changes based on specific events and
general conditions in the financial markets.

The determination of fair value for financial assand financial liabilities for which there is no
observable market price requires the use of valnagéchniques. For financial instruments that trade
infrequently and have little price transparencyr falue is less objective, and requires varying
degrees of judgement depending on liquidity, cotre¢ion, uncertainty of market factors, pricing
assumptions and other risks affecting the speiciitument.

Valuation techniques used to calculate fair valuedude comparisons with similar financial
instruments of which market observable prices existtounted cash flow analysis, option pricing
models and other valuation techniques commonly usdtie market. The objective of valuation
techniques is to arrive at fair value determinatiwet reflects the price of the financial instruman
the reporting date, that would have been deterntayadarket participants acting at arm’s length.

Transfer between fair value hierarchy
There has been no transfer in any levels of thhevédues during the financial year (2020: no transf
in either directions).
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)

34.4 Financial risk management

@)

(b)

Introduction and overview
Risk management framework

The Board of Directors establishes the Bank’s epletite and risk principles. The Board
Risk Management Committee (“BRMC”) is the princifpadard committee that oversees the
Bank’s risk management. It reviews the Bank’s olNeiak management framework and

major risk policies. The BRMC is supported by SehM@nagement Committee, Management
Risk Management Committee (“MRMC?"), various funciid committees at management
level and Risk Management Department.

MRMC has been established for active Senior Managénoversight, deliberating on
policies, profiles and activities pertaining toegtated risk management. All major risk
policies have to be deliberated at relevant fumetiomanagement committees prior to
escalation to BRMC and Board of Directors for apaio

The Bank’s risk management policies are establishaglide the risk governance activities
that cover identification, measurement, assessmatjtoring and controlling of risks. Risk

management policies and systems are reviewed réguéa suit the evolving operating

environment and requirements. The Bank, throughréming, communications, standards
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined andtouctive control environment, in which
all employees understand their roles and obligation

The Board Audit Committee, supported by InternaldiuDepartment, provides an
independent assessment of the adequacy and iigfiabithe risk management processes and
system of internal controls, and compliance wisli policies and regulatory requirements.

The Bank has exposure to the following materiaksisamong others, from financial
instruments:-

* Credit Risk

* Liquidity Risk

* Market Risk

* Operational Risk

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to theradue to failure of the Bank’s customers or
counterparties in meeting their contractual finahabligations. The credit risk comes

primarily from the Bank’s placements, direct lergiitrade finance and funding activities.

Credit exposures are managed in a prudent manreercalfaterals are taken whenever

required as risk mitigation measures. Periodicitmediews are performed to assess the on-
going quality of the Bank’s credit portfolio, thenpact of pertinent factors on the credit
profile of the counterparties/customers and thiatmials taken.

Management of credit
The Board of Directors has delegated the respditgifor the oversight of credit risk to the

Credit Committee and MRMC. These committees arersiged by the Senior Management
Committee.
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)
34.4 Financial risk management
(b)  Credit risk (continued)
The functions of the Credit Committee are as foow

» Ensuring prudent underwriting standards that aresistent with the Bank’s risk appetite
and lending direction.

» Deliberation of lending propositions and crediaitetl requests.

* Reviewing credit exposures periodically to ensuradpnt and effective credit risk
management.

The functions of the MRMC are as follows:-

» Reviewing and tracking of the Bank’s credit riskmagement profile.
* Reviewing and deliberation of credit policies.
* Reviewing and tracking of the credit risk appetit¢he Bank.

The Bank employs a credit grading system as aftwaletermining the credit risk profile of
borrowers/counterparties using appropriate forrmonfrecards. The credit grades are used as a
basis to support the underwriting of credit.

ECL Methodology

MFRS 9 requires banks to determine the quantifreduat of expected credit losses (“ECL")
on a probability-weighted basis as the differeneviben cash flows that are due to the Bank
in accordance with the contractual terms of finahassets and the cash flows that the Bank
expects to receive.

Probability of Default (“PD”) - This is an estimatef the likelihood of a
borrower/counterparty defaulting on its financibligation.

Loss given Default (“LGD”) - This is an estimate the Bank’s expectation of the extent of
loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD may vary by typeounterparty, type and seniority of
claim and availability of collateral or other creslupport.

Exposure at Default (‘EAD”) - This is an estimatetloe exposure at a future default date,
taking into account expected change in the exposiier the reporting date, including
repayments of principal and interest and expectaddbwn on committed facilities.
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)

34.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
ECL Measurement

ECL are generally measured based on the risk @ultebver one of three different stages,
depending on whether the credit risk of the bormeeeinterparty has increased significantly

since initial recognition. Below are the key categ® of staging criteria for ECL
measurement under MFRS 9:-

A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired initial recognition is to be classified as
“Stage 1” and its credit risk is to be continuousignitored by the Bank.

If a significant increase in credit risk since igitrecognition is identified, the financial
instrument will be classified as “Stage 2" busitiot yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, theancial instrument is then classified as
“Stage 3.

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Lossallowance update:  12-month Lifetime Lifetime
at each reporting date ECL ECL ECL
ECL criterion Performing Credit exposure that showsCredit impaired exposure or

credit assets  significant increase in credibhon-performing credit
with 12-month risk (“SICR”) since initial assets
ECL recognition or under-

performing credit assets

Criteria i) Day Past Duei) Watch List account i) DPD>90 days
(“DPD”) <=30 ii) DPD>30 days<90 days ii) Credit-impaired
days iii) Significant downgrade exposure

in credit rating

Change in credit quality since initial recognition

<

I

Improvement Deterioration

Upon implementation of the ECL Model, the provigiompairment for the credit exposures of
the Bank is equivalent to 12-Month ECL or LifetirB€L, depending on the category of the
stages as tabulated above, which are to be comjutbd following manner:-

Stage 1: 12-month ECL = Point in time (“PiT") 12-hb PD x LGD x EAD
Stage 2: Lifetime ECL = Lifetime PD x LGD x EAD

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL = EAD - Expected DiscounteaklE Flows*

O Expected Discounted Cash Flows are computed basgdliwvidual impairment assessment
as stipulated in the Bank’s policy and after inawgting forward-looking considerations.
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)

34.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)

90

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
ECL Measurement(continued)
The Bank’s credit grading system comprises 20 gratbvels for instruments under the not

impaired category and 1 grading level for instruteemder the impaired category. Grades 1-
12 are representative of lower assessed probalfitgefault with other classifications

reflecting progressively higher credit risk.
Grading Level

Grades 1-12

Grades 13-20

Grade 21

Credit Quality Analysis

2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM’000
Loans, Advances and Financing
Corporates
- Grades 1-12 1,165,759 200,582 - 1,366,341
- Grades 13-20 622,809 163,204 - 786,013
- Grade 21 - - 1,125 1,125
1,788,568 363,786 1,125 2,153,479
Allowance for credit loss (23,803) (11,219) (1,125) (36,147)
Carrying Amount 1,764,765 352,567 - 2,117,332
Loans, Advances and Financing to Ban
- Grades 1-12 882,153 - - 882,153
- Grades 13-20 - - - -
- Grade 21 - - - -
882,153 - - 882,153
Allowance for credit loss (72) - (72)
Carrying Amount 882,081 - - 882,081
Loans, Advances and Financing to Re
- Retails 127,968 358 87 128,413
127,968 358 87 128,413
Allowance for credit loss (448) (2) (87) (537)
Carrying Amount 127,520 356 - 127,876
Financial Investmen »
- Grades 1-12 912,579 - - 912,579
- Grades 13-20 5,061 - - 5,061
- Grade 21 - - - -
917,640 - - 917,640
Allowance for credit loss (1,231) - (1,231)
Carrying Amount 916,409 - - 916,409
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)
34.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)

Credit Quality Analysis (continued)

91

2020
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM’000
Loans, Advances a Financing to
Corporates
- Grades 1-12 930,295 453,262 - 1,383,557
- Grades 13-20 790,184 140,783 - 930,967
- Grade 21 - - 1,085 1,085
1,720,479 594,045 1,085 2,315,609
Allowance for credit loss (35,104) (17,068) (1,085) (53,257)
Carrying Amount 1,685,375 576,977 - 2,262,352
Loans, Advances and Financing to Ban
- Grades 1-12 874,343 - - 874,343
- Grades 13-20 - - - -
- Grade 21 - - - -
874,343 - - 874,343
Allowance for credit loss (20) - (20)
Carrying Amount 874,323 - - 874,323
Loans, Advances a Financing to Retails
- Retails 117,142 346 48 117,536
117,142 346 48 117,536
Allowance for credit loss (512) (2) (48) (562)
Carrying Amount 116,630 344 - 116,974
Financial Investmen *
- Grades 1-12 716,459 - - 716,459
- Grades 13-20 50,616 - - 50,616
- Grade 21 - - - -
767,075 - - 767,075
Allowance for credit loss (515) - (515)
Carrying Amount 766,560 - - 766,560

* Consists of cash and short-term funds and depasitd placements with banks and other
financial institutions.

A Allowance for credit loss relating to financiahvestments measured at FVOCI of
RM125,000 (2020: RM1,728,000) is recognised in ottemprehensive income and does
not affect the carrying amount of the financialéeiments.
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)
34.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)
Significant Increase in Credit Risk

The Bank’s credit exposure is to be classified uriftage 2 if either one of the following
guantitative or qualitative criteria has been met:-

Quantitative Criteria

e The obligor has breached the contractual repaymmamtdule and is past due for more
than 30 days (but within 90 days).

« The obligor’s credit grading has deteriorated nmbem the defined threshold as compared
to the original credit grading during initial regagon.

Quialitative Criteria

» If a credit exposure meets any non-mandatory triggaes defined in the Bank’s policy
documents) to the extent that warrants its clasgifin as Watch List Exposure as per
criteria set.

Forward looking information

Both the assessment of SICR and the calculatidaGif have incorporated forward looking
information. The Bank has performed historical gsial and identified the key
macroeconomic factors (“MEFs”) that could causeamal impacts to the ECL of the Bank’s
credit portfolios. The identified MEFs (variableslave been actively monitored and
considered by the Bank in its major business plamprocesses and regular risk assessment
activities ranging from periodic credit reviews, viennmental screening and impacts
assessment, which would be deliberated in the aeguketings at management level and
Board level. The Bank relies on the publicly avaldaeconomic forecasts from reliable and
reputable institutions such as World Bank, IMF.emgtional credit rating agencies and
research institutions. Expert judgement will belegbin forecasting macroeconomic factors
if there is no forecasted MEFs data availabletierBank for reference.

Macroeconomic Factors Assumptions

It is assumed that the state of economy in Malalysig develop into three scenarios with the
probability weightage assigned to each macroecaneog@nario as follows:-

State of economy 2021 2020
Upside Scenario 0.00% 0.00%
Base Scenario 50.00% 30.00%
Downside Scenario 50.00% 70.00%

The adoption of the above probability weightagde$ the Bank’s view of the state of
economy for the next 12 months after considerirg glightly better growth forecasts for
economies domestically as compared to previous iyed020 due to escalated vaccination
rate and reopening of the economy by stages indbatry notwithstanding the downside risk
remains with the resurgence of COVID-19 cases.
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)

34.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
Loss Given Default

Given the lack of historical loss experience, th@nB has resorted to adopt the highest
available LGDs that are sourced directly from majmernational credit rating agencies,

Parent Bank and local peer banks. For corporatecandnercial portfolio, the Bank adopts

the prescribed LGD of 45% for unsecured seniomwdaon corporates as stated in BNM's
Capital Adequacy Framework if the LGD derived frim aforementioned approach is lower
than 45%, the LGD at 45% is to be maintained umait review to cater for the uncertainty of

the downside risk due to prolonged COVID-19 pandemi

Credit Risk Exposure for ECL
The loss allowance recognised may be impacteddigriaas described below:-

» Transfers between Stage 1 to Stage 2 or 3 duenémdial instruments experiencing
significant increases in credit risk or becomingdir impaired during the period which
require adoption of lifetime ECL instead of 12-mo&CL;

* Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changeslires used for PDs, EADs, and
LGDs during the period after considering the prigvgiMEFs; and

* Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changeg fteathodels and assumptions, if
any.

The changes in the loss allowance for loans, acsaad financing between the beginning
and the end of the reporting period are disclosetuNote 8(x) to the financial statements.

Exposure at Default

EAD is a credit exposure (on and off-balance shibet) is expected to be outstanding if the
default is to occur over the next 12 months (fornighth EAD). For undrawn credit
exposure, it would include an estimate of futurawaiown by way of applying applicable
credit conversion factors (“CCF”) (the percentafarmdrawn limit being drawn at the time of
default). Similarly, CCF will be applied to otheff-balance sheet credit exposures (such as
Bank Guarantee) for EAD estimation. The CCF to ®edufor ECL purposes will be based on
the same CCF as adopted under BNM Policy Documentapital Adequacy Framework
(Basel Il - Risk Weighted Assets).

Definition of Default

A credit exposure is to be classified as defadditr impaired exposure and is to be
categorised under Stage 3 if there is occurreneeavfdatory trigger(s) for loan impairment,
as follows:-

* Quantitatively, a credit exposure is to be clasdifas default or impaired exposure when
the obligor has breached its contractual repayrsemtdule and is past due more than 90
days.

* Qualitatively, a credit exposure is to be clasdifées default or impaired exposure if it
meets any of the mandatory triggers as stipulatelde Bank’s policy.
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)

34.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
Definition of Default (continued)

Individual assessment is required for an impaioethl Individually assessed expected credit
loss is required to be provided if the recoverabteunt of the loan asset is less than its net
carrying amount. Recoverable amount is the presgoe of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rateat the current interest rate if it carries
variable interest rate. In addition to the requieats as stipulated in the Bank’s policy
documents, the individual impairment assessmenll sloasider forward-looking factors
appropriate to the subject impaired credit expdsotmterparty.

Write-off policy

Clear write-off policy has been established toustite the approving authority, escalation
process and circumstances under which a loan canritien off. Generally, an impaired

exposure will be written off if the possibility @écovery is deemed highly unlikely; i.e. all
viable actions have been exhausted.

(i) Exposure to credit risk

An analysis of the exposure to credit risk as atrbspective reporting dates is shown

below:-
Gross Allowance Net
carrying  for credit carrying
amount loss amount
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2021
Loans, Advances and Financin¢ Customers
Neither past due nor impait 2,280,573 (35,471) 2,245,102
Past due but not impaired
- Less than one month 107 () 106
Credit impaired 1,212 (1,212)

2,281,89: (36,684)  2245,20:

Loans, Advances and Financing to Be *
Neither past due nor impait 882,153 (72) 882,081

Financial Investmen
- measured at FVOCI »
Neither past due nor impait 465,085 - 465,085

- measured at Amortised Cost
Neither past due nor impait 452,555 (1,231) 451,324

* Consists of cash and short-term funds and depesitl placements with banks and
other financial institutions.

A Allowance for credit loss relating to financialvestments measured at FVOCI of
RM125,000 is recognised in other comprehensivenrec@and does not affect the
carrying amount of the financial investments.
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)
34.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to credit risk (continued)

Gross Allowance Net
carrying  for credit carrying
amount loss amount
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2020
Loans, Advances and Financing to Custol
Neither past due nor impait 2,431,919 (52,686 2,379,233
Past due but not impaired
- Less than one month 93 - 93
Credit impaired 1,133 (1,133

2,433,145 (53,819 2,379,326

Loans, Advances and Financing to Be *
Neither past due nor impait 874,343 (20) 874,323

Financial Investmen
- measured at FVOCI »
Neither past due nor impait 542,881 - 542,881

- measured at Amortised Cost
Neither pasdue nor impaired 224,194 (515 223,679

* Consists of cash and short-term funds and depasitl placements with banks and
other financial institutions.

A Allowance for credit loss relating to financialvestments measured at FVOCI of
RM1,728,000 is recognised in other comprehensieente and does not affect the
carrying amount of the financial investments.

In addition to the above, the Bank had entered liealing commitments of RM757.71
million (2020: RM1.19 billion). The Bank had alsssued financial guarantee contracts
for which the maximum amount payable by the Baskuaing all guarantees are called
on, is RM692.61 million (2020: RM580.62 million).

The Bank holds collaterals against loans, advaacddinancing to customers in the form
of fixed deposits, properties, guarantees and atbeurities. Estimates of fair value are
based on the value of collateral assessed atrtteedf loan origination and subsequent
reviews.

Statutory deposits with BNM

For Statutory deposits with BNM, the maximum expesig represented by its carrying
amount in the statement of financial position. @Gitleat such deposits are not exposed to
credit risk, the Bank has not recognised any altmedor credit loss.
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)
34.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)
(i) Concentration by sector and geographicaldcation
The Bank monitors the concentration of credit rlsk sector and by geographical
distribution. An analysis of the concentration oédit risk as at the respective reporting
dates is shown below:-
2021 2020

RM’'000 RM’'000
Loans, Advances and Financito Banks*

Carrying amount 882,081 874,323
Concentration of credit risk based on sector

Financial services 766,563 726,898
Central bank 115,518 147,425

882,081 874,323

Concentration of credit risk based on geographicdbcation

Malaysia 710,292 826,369
East Asia 6,736 8,025
South East Asia 75,264 17,511
United States of America 41,880 19,042
Europe 42,477 1,080
Oceania 5,432 2,296

882,081 874,323

* Consists of cash and short-term funds and depasitl placements with banks and
other financial institutions.

Concentration of credit risk by geographical dmsition for loans, advances and
financing to Banks is measured based on the lotafithe counterparty.

Concentration by sector and by geographical digfidn for loans, advances and
financing to customers are disclosed under Notég) &nd 8(vi) to the financial
statements.
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)

34.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)

(b)

(©)

Credit risk (continued)
(i) Concentration by sector and geographical locabn (continued)
2021 2020

RM'000 RM’'000
Financial Investmen

Carrying amount 916,409 766,560
Concentration of credit risk based on sector

Financial services 76,946 45,913
Government and central bank 492,063 503,998
Others 347,400 216,649

916,409 766,560

Concentration of credit risk based on geographicdbcation

Malaysia 916,409 735,940

East Asia - 30,620
916,409 766,560

Concentration of credit risk by geographical disition for investment securities is
measured based on the location of the issuer.

(iii) Derivatives risk

The Bank’s derivatives position may give rise tedit risk in the event the counterparty
defaults. Control measures, such as limit settimgd) monitoring, are in place to manage
the said risk.

(iv) Settlement risk

Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to theuf&ilof an entity to honour its obligations to
deliver cash or other assets as contractually dgf@entrol measures such as limit setting
and monitoring are in place to manage the said risk

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risks are the risks when the Bank faitsraise funds to meet its present or future
obligations due to customers or counterparties. poeential liquidity risks of the Bank
mainly include customers’ premature and collectiwehdrawals, overdue repayments from
counterparties, mismatch gap in asset-liabilityuriggt structure and difficulties in realisation
of assets.

Management of liquidity risk

The management of liquidity and funding has beerezhout in compliance with regulatory
requirement as well as management requirement haresholds set by the Assets and
Liabilities Committee (“ALCO”). The Bank maintaina strong liquidity position and
constantly manages the liquidity profile of its etss liabilities and commitments to ensure
that cash flow requirements are appropriately Batignd all obligations are met accordingly.

The Bank has continuously been maintaining relatign with new and existing depositors
and funding counterparties as it aims at growirggftimding base in a diversified manner.
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)

34.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)

(€)

Liquidity risk (continued)
Contractual maturity of financial assets and liatgls

The table below analyses financial assets anditiabiof the Bank based on the remaining contrctoaturity at the end of the reporting period in
accordance with BNM’s Guidelines on Financial Réipot-

Uptol >1-3 >3-12 >1-5 Over 5 No specific
month months months years years  maturity Total
RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’'000

2021
Financial assets
Cash and short-term funds 736,344 - - - - (72) 736,272
Deposits and placements with banks and other

financial institutions - 145,809 - - - - 145,809
Financial investments measured at FVOCI - - 35,337 429,748 - - 465,085
Financial investments measured at amortised cost - - 147,996 304,559 - (1,231) 451,324
Loans, advances and financing 471,731 714,622 2%7,8 481,408 356,304 (36,684) 2,245,208
Derivative financial assets 1,206 1,056 932 - - - ,1938
Other assets 8,628 4,636 1,554 - - 1,569 16,387
Statutory deposits with BNM - - - - - 18,806 18,806
Total financial assets 1,217,909 866,123 443,646 1,215,715 356,304 (17,6124,082,085
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 1,025,182 150,027 747,680 ,0041 - - 1,923,893
Deposits and placements with banks and other

financial institutions 112,216 86,120 690,158 - - - 888,494
Derivative financial liabilities 273 - 115 - - - 88
Other liabilities 7,855 3,986 22,410 6,175 - - 40,426
Provision for commitments and contingencies - - - - - 2,746 2,746
Total financial liabilities 1,145,526 240,133 1,460,363 7,179 - 2,746 2,855,947

Net liquidity gap 72,383 625990 (1,016,717) 1,208,536 356,304 (3,35
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)
34.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

Contractual maturity of financial assets and liagls (continued)

Uptol >1-3 >3-12 >1-5 Over 5 No specific
month months months years years  maturity Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2020
Financial assets
Cash and short-term funds 744,509 - - - - (20) 744,489
Deposits and placements with banks and other

financial institutions - 129,834 - - - - 129,834
Financial investments measured at FVOCI - - 116,289 426,592 - - 542,881
Financial investments measured at amortised cost ,6430 - 20,000 173,552 - (515) 223,679
Loans, advances and financing 687,438 671,239 8a7,1 415,634 211,654 (53,819) 2,379,326
Derivative financial assets 1,514 799 - - - - 2,313
Other assets 8,903 3,809 686 - - 1,817 15,215
Statutory deposits with BNM - - - - - 20,402 20,402
Total financial assets 1,473,006 805,681 584,155 1,015,778 211,654 (32,1354,058,139
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 1,275,735 240,178 460,501 - - - 1,976,414
Deposits and placements with banks and other

financial institutions 81,231 86,120 70,169 602,531 - - 840,051
Derivative financial liabilities 2,169 - 1,021 - - - 3,190
Other liabilities 9,069 3,573 19,676 12,281 - - 44,599
Provision for commitments and contingencies - - - - - 5,453 5,453
Total financial liabilities 1,368,204 329,871 551,367 614,812 - 5,453 2,869,707

Net liquidity gap 104,802 475,810 32,788 400,966 211,654 (37,588)
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)
34.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

Contractual maturity of financial liabilities on aimdiscounted basis

Non-derivative financial liabilities

100

The following tables show the contractual undis¢edrcash flows payable for non-derivative finan@ibilities by remaining contractual maturity. The
amounts disclosed in the tables below will not adgcethe carrying amounts reported in the statewiefinancial position as the amounts incorporattd
contractual cash flows, on an undiscounted basltimg to both principal and interest payments.

Cash flows payable in respect of deposits fromarusts are primarily contractually repayable on dainar at short notice. However, in practice, short
term deposit balances remain stable and the Baakls flow position has been actively managed.

2021

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Deposits from customers

Deposits and placements with banks and other finbnc
institutions

Other liabilities

Commitments and contingencies
Contingent liabilities
Commitments

Upto1l >1-3 >3-12 >1-5 >5
month months months years years Total
RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
1,027,210 151,862 758,802 ,0041 - 1,938,878
112,491 87,072 709,162 - - 908,725
5,708 1,887 16,174 6,174 - 29,943
1,145,409 240,821 1,484,138 7,178 - 2,877,546
18,141 101,582 102,922 53,220 9,562 285,427
2,733 2,933 149,637 55,390 - 210,693
20,874 104,515 252,559 108,610 9,562 496,120
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)
34.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)
Contractual maturity of financial liabilities on amdiscounted basis (continued)

Non-derivative financial liabilities (continued)

101

Uptol >1-3 >3-12 >1-5
month months months years Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2020
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 1,277,979 243,050 469,123 - 1,990,152
Deposits and placements with banks and other fiahimstitutions 81,598 87,571 71,875 621,206 86Q,2
Other liabilities 6,688 304 15,483 11,139 33,614
1,366,265 330,925 556,481 632,345 2,886,016
Commitments and contingencies
Contingent liabilities 13,589 29,581 133,542 110,973 287,685
Commitments 3,364 2,136 231,039 41,620 278,159
16,953 31,717 364,581 152,593 565,844
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)
34.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

Derivative financial instruments measured at tHair values together with their corresponding

contract/notional amounts:-

Contract/
Nominal Positive fair Negative fair
amountupto valueupto value upto
1 Year 1 Year 1 Year
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2021
Trading derivatives
Foreign exchange contracts
- Currency forwards and spots 233,217 1,766 -
- Currency swaps 159,847 1,012 273
Interest rate contracts
- Cross currency interest rate swaps 208,837 301 -
- Interest rate swaps 200,000 115 115
801,901 3,194 388
Contract/
Nominal  Positive fair Negative fair
amountupto valueupto value upto
1 Year 1 Year 1 Year
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2020
Trading derivatives
Foreign exchange contracts
- Currency forwards and spots 158,625 1,565 362
- Currency swaps 285,185 748 2,828
443,810 2,313 3,190

(d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from movertein market variables, such as interest
rates, foreign exchange rates or prices of any fafrfimancial instruments.

Management of market risk

The Bank has established governance process fdteimask management that covers the
activities of identifying, measuring, monitoringprarolling and reporting market risks on a
timely basis. The objective of market risk managetie to manage and control the market
risk exposures within acceptable range accordirijad@ank’s risk appetite.

The Bank does not engage in any proprietary tradiativities. Exposures arising from
normal banking activities (deposits, loans, foreggehange, etc) are managed accordingly to
minimise the exposure to market risk. All risksatel to treasury activities will be managed
according to, and within the authorised risk limits
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)
34.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)
(d) Market risk (continued)
Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that arises assalt of movements in the relative value of
currencies. The Bank is exposed to foreign exchaisgeon transactions that are denominated
in currencies other than its functional currencitieBank minimises its exposure to foreign
exchange risk through hedging and limiting the opén position of the foreign exchange
portfolio.

The following tables summarise the assets, liéddliand net open position by currency as at the
reporting date, which are mainly in Ringgit MalaysiUnited States Dollars and Chinese
Renminbi. Other currencies include Euro, Austr8l@lars, Great Britain Pounds, Hong Kong
Dollars, Japanese Yen, Canadian Dollars, New Zddbmilars, Singapore Dollars, Swiss Franc
and Thai Baht.

United
Malaysia States  Chinese
Ringgit Dollar Renminbi Others Total

2021 RM'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’'000
ASSETS
Cash and short-term funds 222,629 477,056 16,324 20,263 736,272
Deposits and placements with

banks and other financial

institutions - 145,809 - - 145,809
Financial investments

measured at FVOCI 465,085 - - - 465,085
Financial investments

measured at amortised cost 451,324 - - - 451,324
Loans, advances and

financing 1,530,593 471,190 166,129 77,296 2,245,208
Derivative financial assets 2,385 289 375 145 3,194
Other assets 17,492 115 3 - 17,610
Statutory deposits with Bank

Negara Malaysia 18,806 - - - 18,806
Tax recoverable 5,843 - - - 5,843
Property and equipment 5,111 - - - 5,111
Right-of-use assets 8,163 - - - 8,163
Intangible asset - - - - -
Deferred tax assets 10,485 - - - 10,485

TOTAL ASSETS 2,737,916 1,094,459 182,831 97,704 4,112,910
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)
34.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)
(d) Market risk (continued)
Foreign exchange risk (continued)
United
Malaysia States  Chinese
Ringgit Dollar Renminbi Others Total
2021 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 1,463,556 319,897 122,404 18,036 1,923,893
Deposits and placements of
banks and other financial
institutions 206,359 624,896 57,239 - 888,494
Derivative financial
liabilities 115 273 - - 388
Other liabilities 38,157 1,298 946 25 40,426
Lease liabilities 8,021 - - - 8,021
Provision for commitments
and contingencies 2,746 - - - 2,746
Provision for taxation 91 - - - 91
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,719,045 946,364 180,589 18,061 2,864,059
United
Malaysia States  Chinese
Ringgit Dollar Renminbi Others Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2020
ASSETS
Cash and short-term funds 427,121 292,693 18,8095,866 744,489
Deposits and placements
with banks and other
financial institutions - 120,506 - 9,328 129,834
Financial investments
measured at FVOCI 542,881 - - - 542,881
Financial investments
measured at amortised
cost 193,059 - 30,620 - 223,679
Loans, advances and
financing 1,642,241 481,560 122,527132,998 2,379,326
Derivative financial assets 1,198 - 1,115 - 2,313
Other assets 16,413 133 1 2 16,549
Statutory deposits with
Bank Negara Malaysia 20,402 - - - 20,402
Tax recoverable 9,163 - - - 9,163
Property and equipment 3,753 - - - 3,753
Right-of-use assets 10,800 - - - 10,800
Intangible asset - - - - -
Deferred tax assets 11,158 - - - 11,158
TOTAL ASSETS 2,878,189 894,892 173,072 148,194 4,094,347
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)
34.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)
(d) Market risk (continued)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

105

United
Malaysia States  Chinese
Ringgit Dollar Renminbi Others Total

2020 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 1,542,110 333,348 85,679 15,277 1,976,414
Deposits and placements of

banks and other financial

institutions 202,401 602,531 35,119 - 840,051
Derivative financial

liabilities - 3,190 - - 3,190
Other liabilities 40,049 2,795 1,732 23 44,599
Lease liabilities 10,549 - - - 10,549
Provision for commitments

and contingencies 5,453 - - - 5,453
Provision for taxation 235 - - - 235
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,800,797 941,864 122,530 15,300 2,880,491
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34.  Financial Instruments(continued)
34.4 Financial risk managemen{continued)
(d) Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

In respect of interest-earning financial assets iatetest-bearing financial liabilities, the follovg tables summarise the Bank's exposure to inteege risk at the
respective reporting dates and the periods in wihieli reprice or mature, whichever is earlier.

2021 | Non-trading book |
Non-
Upto1l >1t03 >3to 12 >1t05 Over 5 interest Trading
month months months years years sensitive book Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000  RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Assets
Cash and short-term funds 720,348 - - - - 15,924 - 736,272
Deposits and placements with banks and other finhnc

institutions - 145,809 - - - - - 145,809
Financial investment measured at FVOCI - - 35,337 429,748 - - - 465,085
Financial investments measured at amortised cost - - 147,996 303,328 - - - 451,324
Loans, advances and financing:
- performing 462,432 703,152 253,689 475,350 350,585 - - 2,245,208
Other assets » - - - - - 38,387 - 38,387
Total assets 1,182,780 848,961 437,022 1,208,426 350,585 54,311 - 4,082,085
Liabilities
Deposits from customers 542,117 150,027 1,230,749 1,000 - - - 1,923,893
Deposits and placements of banks and other financia

institutions 737,112 86,120 65,262 - - - - 888,494
Other liabilities * - - - - - 43,560 43,560
Total liabilities 1,279,229 236,147 1,296,011 1,000 - 43,560 - 2,855,947
Equity - - - - - 1,248,851 1,248,851
Total liabilities and equity 1,279,229 236,147 1,296,011 1,000 - 1,292,411 - 4,104,798
On-balance sheet interest sensitivity gap (96,449) 612,814 (858,989) 1,207,426 350,585 (1,238,100) -

Total interest sensitivity gap (96,449) 612,814 (858,989) 1,207,426 350,585 (1,238,100) -
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)
34.4 Financial risk managemen{continued)
(d) Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

2020 : Non-trading book |
Uptol >1t03 >3 to 12 >1t05 Over 5 Non-interest Trading
month months months years years sensitive book Total
RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Assets
Cash and short-term funds 725,084 - - - - 19,405 - 744,489
Deposits and placements with banks and other finhnc

institutions - 129,834 - - - - - 129,834
Financial investment measured at FVOCI - - 116,28¢ 426,592 - - - 542,881
Financial investments measured at amortised cost 0,642 - 20,00C 173,037 - - - 223,679
Loans, advances and financing:
- performing 1,363,546 760,962 199,104 53,990 1,724 - - 2,379,326
Other assets » - - - - - 37,930 - 37,930
Total assets 2,119,272 890,796 335,39: 653,61¢ 1,724 57,335 - 4,058,139
Liabilities
Deposits from customers 660,510 240,178 460,501 615,225 - - - 1,976,414
Deposits and placements of banks and other financia

institutions 683,762 86,120 70,16¢ - - - - 840,051
Other liabilities * - - - - - 53,242 53,242
Total liabilities 1,344,272 326,298 530,67(C 615,22E - 53,242 - 2,869,707
Equity - - - - - 1,213,856 1,213,856
Total liabilities and equity 1,344,272 326,298 530,67( 615,22¢ - 1,267,098 - 4,083,563
On-balance sheet interest sensitivity gap 775,000 564,498 (195,277) 38,394 1,724 (1,209,763 -
Total interest sensitivity gap 775,000 564,498 (195,277) 38,394 1,724 (1,209,763 -

A Other assets include other assets (excludingfinancial instruments), statutory deposits with BMNnd derivative financial assets as disclosechenstatement of
financial position.

* QOther liabilities include other liabilities, deative financial liabilities and provision for conitments and contingencies as disclosed in themeit of financial
positions.
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34. Financial Instruments(continued)

34.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)

(d) Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

An analysis of the Bank’s sensitivity to an increas decrease in market interest rates,
assuming no asymmetrical movement in yield curves @ constant financial position, is as
follows:-

(i)

(ii)

(e)

Sensitivity of projected net interest income

100 bps* 100 bps*
Parallel Parallel
Increase Decrease
RM’'000 RM’000

At 31 December 2021 10,446 (10,446)
At 31 December 2020 12,209 (12,209)

Sensitivity of reported reserves in other coeiensive income to interest rate movements

100 bps* 100 bps*
Parallel Parallel
Increase Decrease
RM’'000 RM’000

At 31 December 2021 (8,853) 8,853
At 31 December 2020 (12,065) 12,065

* bps - basis points
Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirdoss arising from a wide variety of
causes associated with the Bank’s processes, peiséachnology and infrastructure,
and from external factors other than credit, maaket liquidity risks.

Every department is responsible for understandiegoperational risks inherent in its
material products, activities, processes and systefhey are responsible for the
management of operational risk on a day-to-daysbaBhe Bank has adopted the
following standards and management measures ingimgnaperational risk:-

« requirement for appropriate segregation of dutredyuding independent
authorisation of transactions

* requirement for reconciliation and monitoring @frisactions

< compliance with regulatory and other legal requizata

¢ documentation of controls and procedures

« development of contingency plans

¢ training and professional development

» ethical and business standards

¢ risk mitigation, including insurance where applieab



Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M) 109

35.

Capital management

Regulatory capital
The Bank’s lead regulator, BNM, sets and monit@gital requirement for the Bank. The Bank is
required to comply with the provisions of the Badednd IIl frameworks in respect of regulatory
capital adequacy.

The Bank adopts a prudent capital management agptoansure it has adequate capital to support
its operations at all times. On top of the minimregulatory capital requirements, a buffer is added
on to arrive at the Bank’s internal capital targeensure adequacy of capital to support the cturren
and anticipated business growth. Internal Capitdeduacy Assessment Process (“ICAAP”) is
formulated to identify the material risks in thesimess. The material risk areas that are taken into
consideration are credit risk, market risk, operai risk, credit concentration risk, liquidity kis
interest rate risk in banking book, compliance rikategic risk as well as reputation risk.

Internal capital assessment is carried out to ohter the level of internal capital required by the
Bank based on the Pillar 1 and 2 requirements disasethe assessment of the 3-year financial
projection and stress testing. Capital plan, busirdan and budget are approved by the Board of
Directors on an annual basis. The business plgpaiticular would set out the Bank’s lending
direction and business strategies for the comirayg gecording to the approved risk appetite. Senior
Management is responsible for ensuring a smootkldpment and implementation of the ICAAP
policy as well as effective systems and processeingplace. The Bank’s performance against the
internal capital level is reviewed on a regularibdey the Senior Management. Should there be a
need for capital raising exercise, it will be preeel to the Board of Directors for approval.

The Bank undertakes stress test exercise peritydioahssess the Bank’s capability to withstand an
adverse environment. The stress test will at leager the exceptional but plausible event and the
worst case scenario for a 3-year period. The plasgibpact to the Bank due to occurrence of
adverse events, i.e. significant deteriorationarrdwers’ credit profile, decline in collateral ual
erosion in the Bank’s net interest margin and agkvenovement of foreign exchange rate will be
examined. The results of the stress test togeththrtiie proposed mitigating actions will be tabled
to the Senior Management and the Board of Diredtordeliberations.

The Bank’s regulatory capital are analysed as\idle
(a) Tier 1 Capital, which comprises the following:-

« Common Equity Tier 1 (“CET1") Capital, which inclesl ordinary share capital, retained
earnings (net of dividends declared), statutoremes and other regulatory adjustments
relating to items that are included in equity brg teated differently for capital adequacy
purpose.

« Additional Tier 1 Capital, which consists of instrants that are issued and paid-up,
subordinated to depositors and perpetual in ngaur®ngst all other criteria) which are not
included in CET1 Capital as well as the regulatmfjustments in relation to the calculation
of Additional Tier 1 Capital.

(b) Tier 2 Capital includes collective impairment alemees (excluding collective impairment
allowances attributable to financing classifiednagaired) and regulatory reserve.



